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About this Annual 
Report 
The Murrindindi Shire Council Annual Report 2014-2015 details 
progress we have made in the past financial year, 1 July 2014 
to 30 June 2015, towards achieving the actions of the Council 
Plan 2013–2017 and the 2014-2015 Annual Budget. 

In this report we identify our achievements, challenges and 
what is planned for the year ahead under the four themes 
of Our Council, Our Economy, Our Environment and Our 
Community.

This Report contains audited financial reports and 
performance statements, as required by the Local Government 
Act 1989 and is written for a variety of audiences including 
government agencies, the community, ratepayers and 
businesses. 

Copies of this report are available at council offices or online 
at www.murrindindi.vic.gov.au 

Further copies or questions/comments?

If you would like additional copies of our Annual Report 2014-
2015 or you have any questions or would like to provide us 
with feedback about this Report, please send your enquiry by 
email to msc@murrindindi.vic.gov.au or post to  
Chief Executive Officer, Murrindindi Shire Council,  
PO Box 138, Alexandra 3714. 

Contact us
ALEXANDRA 
28 Perkins Street, Alexandra
Ph: (03) 5772 0333   Fax: (03) 5772 2291

KINGLAKE
19 Kinglake-Whittlesea Road, Kinglake
Ph: (03) 5786 1522   Fax: (03) 5786 1515

YEA
Civic Centre, Semi Circle, Yea
Ph: (03) 5797 2209    Fax: (03) 5797 2900

msc@murrindindi.vic.gov.au
www.murrindindi.vic.gov.au
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Murrindindi snapshot

Council services offered
•	 Economic	Development	
•	 Tourism	services
•	 Events	management	
•	 Asset	Management
•	 Waste	management	
•	 Environmental	services	
•	 Land	use,	development	and	subdivisions	
•	 Parks	and	gardens
•	 Building	control	
•	 Aged	and	disability	services	
•	 Youth	and	recreational	development	
•	 Public	Health	
•	 Libraries	
•	 Roads	and	bridges	
•	 Children	and	family	services	
•	 Community	development

Industries
•			Agriculture,	aquaculture,	horticulture	and	viticulture
•			Forestry	and	timber	processing	
•			Tourism,	hospitality	and	conferencing			
•			Light	manufacturing	and	engineering				
•			Retail	and	trade	services		
•			Health	and	Education		
•			Public	services

Our history 
The Wurundjeri tribe and the Taungurung language speakers 
are the traditional owners of the land known as the Shire of 
Murrindindi.

European settlement followed Hume and Hovell’s overland 
exploration in December 1824. Many local towns were 
established during the 1850s and 1860s after the discovery of 
gold.

The Murrindindi Shire Council was declared on 18 November 
1994 by the amalgamation of the former municipalities of 
Alexandra and Yea, and the addition of parts of the former 
municipalities of Healesville, Broadford, Eltham, Whittlesea and 
Euroa. 

Our Shire
Location:	150	kms	or	90	minutes	north	east	of	Melbourne
Area:		3873	sq	kms	(48%	Crown	Land)
Population: 13,595  
(Estimates Residential Victorian Population: ABS 2014) 
Councillors: 7
Rateable properties: 9537
Sealed roads (Council maintained): 487.5 kms
Unsealed roads (Council maintained): 713.7 kms

Townships & Localities
•	Acheron	•	Alexandra	•	Buxton	•	Cathkin	•	Castella	•	Caveat	 
•	Devil’s	River	•	Dropmore	•	Eildon	•	Fawcett	•	Flowerdale	 
•	Ghin	Ghin	•	Glenburn	•	Gobur	•	Highlands	•	Homewood	 
•	Kanumbra	•	Kerrisdale	•	Killingworth	•	Kinglake	•	Kinglake	
Central	•	Kinglake	West	•	Koriella	•	Limestone	•	Maintaingoon	 
•	Marysville	•	Molesworth	•	Murrindindi	•	Narbethong	 
•	Pheasant	Creek	•	Rubicon	•	Strath	Creek	•	Taggerty	•	Taylor	Bay	
•	Terip	Terip	•	Thornton	•	Toolangi	•	Whanregarwen	•	Yarck	•	Yea

Vision 
Murrindindi Shire will be vibrant and progressive through 
strong connected communities within a healthy and attractive 
environment. 

Values
•	 Integrity	-	We	will	be	respectful,	open	and	truthful	in	our	

dealings. Council will strive to be valued and trusted by the 
Murrindindi Shire community.

•	 Accountability	-	We	will	accept	responsibility	for	our	actions	
and be consistent in the application of our principles, 
policies and processes.

•	 Innovation	-	We	will	consider	new	ideas,	opportunities	and	
better ways of doing things. Council will constantly seek 
opportunities to look for new, more efficient and effective 
ways of providing its services.

•	 Respect	-	We	will	respect	other	people	and	their	opinions	
and do as we say we will.

•	 Service	Excellence	–	We	will	ensure	that	Council	services	
meet quality, cost and efficiency standards; are responsive 
to need; accessible to members of the community for 
whom the service is intended; and demonstrate continuous 
improvement.
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Message from the Mayor and  
Chief Executive Officer
It is with pleasure that we submit the 
Annual Report for 2014-15.  Reflecting 
on the year’s activities, it has been 
rewarding to work with the community 
to ensure local priorities are heard and 
integrated into Council’s planning and 
projects.

Earlier contributions by communities 
across the Shire to the development 
of the Murrindindi 2030 Vision process 
continued to inspire Council action on 
a range of issues.  Council continues to 
work to find the right balance between 
enabling growth and development, 
and ensuring the Shire retains both its 
natural beauty and the charming rural 
character of its towns.   

This also provided the framework for 
our substantial consultation with the 
community, seeking its views on options 
under consideration to help meet the 
ongoing funding shortfall arising from 
the gifting of new and expanded assets 
to Council since 2009. The community 
clearly preferred Council to examine 
options for land sales and to review 
existing management arrangements 
and responsibilities for our public 
facilities, and this feedback has helped 
us to focus our efforts.  Council is taking 
action to hand back costs associated 
with management of assets owned by 
other authorities and to give the Shire’s 
communities a greater say – and greater 
responsibility – for the assets they use 
and hold dear. This work will continue in 
coming months and years.

Council has continued its efforts to 
attract additional State funding support 
to meet these increased costs. Council 
is also seeking funding support to 
promote the opportunities that are 
emerging across the Shire and the 
benefits	for	Government	and	other	
bodies in supporting these. Council 
also has had to build into its processes 
additional efforts aimed at addressing 
the consequences of a decision at 
the Federal level to freeze Federal 
Assistance	Grant	funding	to	councils.

Council worked to attract the kinds 
of activities to the Shire which will 
boost spending in the region; to this 
end, Council hosted the Municipal 
Association of Victoria’s (MAV) Annual 
Rural and Regional Planning Conference 
and also made a successful bid for the 
Rural Councils Victoria (RCV) Summit, 
which will be held in Marysville in 
2016 and will help boost tourism by 
highlighting the recovery and growth 
across the whole Shire.   

Reducing obstacles to growth and 
development was also a priority. 
Council advocated strongly for 
the need to address mobile phone 
blackspots in the Shire and contributed 
to the efforts of the Member for Indi, 
Ms	Cathy	McGowan	and	the	Indi	
Telecommunications	Action	Group	
in helping advance this important 
goal. We were rewarded with the 
announcement by the Federal 
Government	that	eight	new	mobile	
base stations would be constructed 
across the Shire over the next three 
years, with a significant improvement 
for mobile phone coverage anticipated. 
This should provide businesses, 
residents and visitors with much better 
communication capability.

Also contributing to development and 
growth across the Shire was Council’s 
strong performance in providing fast 
and efficient building and planning 
services.  78% of planning permits were 
issued within the statutory timeframe 
of 60 days, compared to the state wide 
average of 65%, and 98% of building 
permits were issued within the target 
of 30 days. It is pleasing to note that 
the value of works proposed through 
the planning process is in excess of $31 
million, an increase of $11 million over 
the previous year.

Council provided numerous 
opportunities for community 
engagement, consultation and 
information, including via building, 
planning and economic development 

 
Margaret Rae
Mayor
 

Margaret Abbey
Chief Executive Officer

M
AY

O
R	
&
	C
EO

M
ES
SA

G
E

5

MURRINDINDI SHIRE COUNCILANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015



forums across the Shire.  Several forums were 
held to discuss planned works and projects with 
the community and to seek input on a variety 
of infrastructure projects including the Kinglake 
Streetscape Master Plan, the Taggerty Community 
Project, the Eildon and Yarck Streetscape Projects, 
the Yea Swimming Pool Redevelopment, the 
Taylor Bay Waste and Recycling Compound and 
the	replacement	of	the	Ghin	Ghin	Bridge.

Council	also	ran	a	Grants	Forum	for	community	
information and capacity building in 
conjunction with key community organisations 
across the Shire. An Aged Care Forum for 
stakeholders in our Shire was held to foster 
increased collaboration across the sector as 
well as examining opportunities for growth and 
investment. Other forums were held during 
the year to engage the community in the 
development	of	a	Murrindindi	Gaming	Policy,	
the development of the Council’s new Rating 
Strategy, and the draft Lake Eildon Recreational 
Boating Infrastructure Plan.   

Council has a direct role in supporting the 
health and well-being of communities across 
the Shire. Council continues to provide support 
for the Shire’s municipal swimming pools, 
which were visited by over 21,000 people 
over the year. Our three static libraries in 
Kinglake, Yea and Alexandra and our mobile 
library continue to carry on great work in our 
communities, by offering community and 
educational hubs and a wide range of engaging 
and exciting programs, attended by over 6000 
people through the year. We would like to 
acknowledge	too,	the	‘Friends	of	the	Library’	
groups in Alexandra and Yea for their support 
to the contribution our libraries make in the 
community. 

A particularly positive initiative this year has 
been Access Murrindindi. Introduced as a pilot 
program in Alexandra, this provided businesses 
with the opportunity to be assessed as ‘access 
friendly’ for those with either a permanent 
or temporary disability. Sixteen businesses 
have received promotional stickers so far. This 

initiative then progressed to the development 
of the Murrindindi Shire Mobility Maps booklet 
which provides maps and information on 
accessible services and facilities in the Shire for 
residents and visitors.

Direct recycling initiatives on a trial basis at 
Alexandra and Yea have proved to be very 
successful and will be continued and extended. 
Other environmentally friendly initiatives have 
included participating in the Watts Working 
Better Project in conjunction with nine other 
councils. This initiative will see the replacement 
of 534 street lights in the Shire resulting in a 
significant reduction in costs and in greenhouse 
gas emissions.

Council also has a role in advocating on behalf 
of everyone to ensure government funding 
is maintained at appropriate levels.  Council 
advocated	to	Federal	and	State	Governments	to	
retain funding for the Family Day Care Scheme 
and for the retention of key elements of the 
Home and Community Care (HACC) system in 
the	transition	from	State	to	Federal	Government	
management. Council also launched the 
Murrindindi Children’s Network Facebook Page, 
to help parents share information and engage 
with the community.

Additionally, since the State Election, Council 
has been promoting ways of boosting the 
economy and development within the Shire 
and encouraging other sources of funding.  
Council has met local members of parliament, 
several former and new State Ministers and 
Shadow Ministers to advocate Council and 
community needs in areas such as planning, 
tourism infrastructure, aged care, education and 
support for key industry sectors including local 
industry-based training.  

It has been an active and productive year, 
and we would like to extend our thanks to 
Councillors, staff and our community in helping 
us move toward a prosperous future for our 
Shire.

 

Margaret Abbey Margaret Rae
Chief Executive Officer Mayor
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Councillors

Cr Margaret Rae
Mayor 
Redgate Ward
First elected November 2012
Portfolio:  
The Mayor does not hold a Portfolio
Ward township: Alexandra
The Mayor is Chair of meetings 
of the Murrindindi Shire Council 
and represents Murrindindi 
Shire Council on the following 
advisory committees and external 
organisations:
•	 Internal	Audit	Advisory	

Committee
•	 Advancing	Country	Towns	
Strategic	Steering	Group

•	 Chief	Executive	Officer	
Performance Review Sub-
Committee

•	 Economic	Development	Sub-
Committee

•	 Alexandra	Police	&	Community	
Consultative Committee

•	 High	Country	Councils	Coalition
•	 Municipal	Association	of	Victoria	

(MAV)
•	 Rural	Councils	Victoria	(RCV)
•	 Mount	Pleasant	Reserve	

Committee of Management
•	 Alexandra	Community	
Leisure	Centre	Committee	of	
Management 

•	 Alexandra	Racecourse	&	
Recreation Reserve Committee of 
Management (DEPI)

•	 Alexandra	Showgrounds	&	
Recreation Reserve Committee of 
Management (DEPI)

•	 Hume	Regional	Local	Government	
Network

Cr John Kennedy
Deputy Mayor
Cheviot Ward
First elected:  
November 2012
Portfolio:  
Natural Environment & 
Climate Change
Ward townships:  
Yea, Strath Creek, Flowerdale
The Deputy Mayor represents 
Murrindindi Shire Council 
on the following advisory 
committees and external 
organisations:
•	 Internal	Audit	Advisory	

Committee 
•	 Chief	Executive	Officer	

Performance Review Sub-
Committee 

•	 Friends	of	Yea	Shire	Hall	
Advisory Committee

•	 Murrindindi	Environment	
Advisory Committee

•	 Friends	of	Yea	Railway	
Committee of Management

•	 Strath	Creek	Pioneer	
Reserve Committee of 
Management

•	 Yea	Pioneer	Reserve	
Committee of Management

•	 Yea	Showgrounds	&	
Recreation Reserve 
Committee of Management

•	 Yea	Wetlands	Committee	of	
Management

John Walsh
Koriella Ward
First Elected: 2008
Portfolio:  
Land	Use	Planning
Ward townships:  
Yarck, Cathkin, Molesworth, 
Limestone,	Highlands,	Gobur
Cr Walsh represents 
Murrindindi Shire Council 
on the following advisory 
committees and external 
organisations:
•	 Central	Ranges	Local	
Learning	and	Employment	
Network	(CRLLEN)

•	 Peri	Urban	Group	of	Rural	
Councils

•	 Timber	Towns	Victoria	(TTV)	
•	 Yea	Saleyards	Committee	of	

Management
•	 Murrindindi	Scenic	Reserve	

Committee of Management 
(DEPI)
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Councillors

Cr Bernie Magner
Eildon Ward
First elected: 
November 2012
Portfolio:  
Infrastructure & Waste
Ward townships:  
Thornton, Eildon 

Cr Magner represents 
Murrindindi Shire Council 
on the following advisory 
committees and external 
organisations:

•	 Audit	Advisory	Committee	
(alternate)

•	 Advancing	Country	Towns	
Strategic	Steering	Group

•	 Chief	Executive	Officer	
Performance Review Sub-
Committee

•	 Goulburn	Valley	Waste	&	
Resource	Recovery	Local	
Government	Forum

•	 Eildon	Alliance	Boat	
Ramp Committee of 
Management

•	 Eildon	Community	
Resource Centre 
Committee of 
Management

•	 Thornton	Recreation	
Reserve and Hall 
Committee of 
Management

•	 Eildon	Community	
Centre Committee of 
Management

In June 2015, Cr Magner 
announced his resignation as 
Councillor due to competing 
work commitments.  
Cr Magner’s resignation was 
effective from 28 August 
2015.

Cr Andrew Derwent 
Kinglake Ward
First elected: 
November 2012
Portfolio:  
Community Services
Ward townships:  
Kinglake, Toolangi 

Cr Derwent represents 
Murrindindi Shire Council 
on the following advisory 
committees and external 
organisations:

•	 Internal	Audit	Advisory	
Committee

•	 Murrindindi	Environment	
Advisory Committee

•	 Kinglake	Community	
Centre Advisory 
Committee

•	 Municipal	Emergency	
Management Planning 
Committee

•	 MAV	Emergency	
Management Reference 
Group

•	 CJ	Dennis	&	Castella	Public	
Hall Reserve Committee of 
Management

•	 Kinglake	Memorial	
Reserve Committee of 
Management

Cr Cris Ruhr 
King Parrot Ward
First elected: 
March 2010 
Portfolio:  
Corporate and Customer 
Services 
Ward townships:  
Flowerdale,	Glenburn,	
Kinglake West,  
Pheasant Creek

Cr Ruhr represents 
Murrindindi Shire Council 
on the following advisory 
committees and external 
organisations:

•	 Glenburn	Community	
Centre Committee of 
Management

•	 Flowerdale	Community	
House Committee of 
Management

•	 Flowerdale	Community	
Hall Reserve Committee 
Inc	(DELWP)

In May 2015, Cr Ruhr 
announced his resignation as 
Councillor due to competing 
work commitments. Cr Ruhr’s 
resignation was effective 
from 25 June 2015.

Cr Christine Challen 
Cathedral Ward
First elected: 
November 2012
Portfolio:  
Economic Development
Ward townships:  
Taggerty, Buxton, Marysville, 
Narbethong

Cr Challen represents 
Murrindindi Shire Council 
on the following advisory 
committees and external 
organisations:

•	 Economic	Development	
Advisory Committee

•	 Linking	Murrindindi	
Partnership 

•	 Goulburn	River	Valley	
Tourism Board

•	 MAV	Arts	&	Culture	
Committee

•	 Workspace	Australia	Board
•	 Buxton	Recreation	

Reserve Committee of 
Management

•	 Gallipoli	Park	Precinct	
Committee of 
Management

•	 Steavenson	Falls	Scenic	
Reserve Committee of 
Management	(DELWP)
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Chief Executive Officer 

Margaret Abbey 
Margaret joined Murrindindi Shire Council 
in 2010 with 26 years of local government 
experience. Margaret is the link between 
the elected Council and the organisation. 
The Council delegates a number of powers 
to Margaret to ensure she has the authority 
to fulfill her role. Margaret has focused 
on developing a financially sustainable 
organisation, as well as continued service 
delivery across the Shire.

Margaret is the Vice President of the Dame 
Pattie Menzies Centre Board in Alexandra 
and in her private capacity was recently 
elected Vice President of the International 
Bobbin	and	Needle	Lace	Organisation	
(OIDFA).    

Margaret previously held the position of 
Group	Manager,	Environment	and	Planning	
Services at Nillumbik Council and her first 
council role was in the Southern Highlands 
of NSW.  Margaret has an Arts Degree, 
a Masters Degree in Town and Country 
Planning and Postgraduate qualifications in 
Management from Victoria University.  

General Manager Corporate 
and Community Services 
Michael Chesworth
Michael has been with Murrindindi Shire 
Council since 1997 and has held a number 
of senior positions. His current role 
oversees a broad area of services within 
the Corporate and Community Services 
Division.

Michael oversees Business Services, 
Community	Services,	Library,	
Communications, Customer Service, 
Human Resources and Risk Departments, 
Finance	&	Rates,	Governance,	Procurement	
and Insurance, Records Management, 
Information Technology, Aged and 
Disability, Children’s Services, Recreation 
and Youth.

Margaret Abbey

Michael Chesworth

Elaine Wyatt

Tamara Johnson

General Manager 
Infrastructure and 
Development Services
Elaine Wyatt
Elaine relocated to Australia from the UK 
seven years ago and became an Australian 
citizen in 2013.  Elaine joined Murrindindi 
Shire Council in November 2014.

Elaine has over 22 years experience in 
the Highways and Infrastructure industry 
including over 10 years in local government 
roles. Elaine’s technical background is in Traffic 
and Transport and she holds a Bachelors 
Degree in Traffic Management and a Masters 
in Transport Engineering & Planning. Elaine 
also recently completed a Masters of Business 
Administration at Deakin University.

Elaine oversees the Infrastructure and 
Development Division of Council which 
includes the areas of Asset, Plant and Fleet 
Management, Capital Works, Environment 
and	Waste,	Health	and	Local	Laws,	Planning	
and Building, Economic Development and 
Emergency Management.

Former General Manager 
Corporate and Community 
Services
Tamara Johnson
Tamara joined Murrindindi Shire Council 
in	2012	as	General	Manager	Infrastructure	
Services and was then appointed to the 
role	of	General	Manager	Infrastructure	and	
Development Services following Council’s 
transition	to	a	two	General	Manager	structure.	

Tamara’s role covered the management of 
Development and Environmental Services, 
Environmental Programs and Infrastructure 
Assets and Operations.   

Tamara resigned from Council in September 
2014 to take up a managerial position with 
Mitchell Shire Council.
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Organisational Structure
Chief Executive Officer

Margaret Abbey

Executive Assistant CEO
Annette Reddon,  

Tammy Fallon (shared)

Executive Assistant,  
GMs

Michelle Jack

GM Corporate &  
Community Services
Michael Chesworth

GM Infrastructure & 
Development Services 

Elaine Wyatt

Manager Business Services
Andrew Bond
Finance and Management Accounting

Payroll, Rates & Valuations

Governance and Council Administration 
Information Technology

Procurement/Insurance/Risk

Saleyards

Information/Records Management

Manager Community Services 
Naomi McNamara
Aged & Disability/ HACC Services

Children’s Services

Youth and Recreation Services

Maternal & Child Health Services

Municipal Emergency Relief and  
Recovery Management

Manager Communications, 
Library and Customer 
Services – Jacqui Rabel
Public Relations

Media Liaison

Website

Internal and external communications 

Reception & Customer Services

Library services, collection, development  
and programs 

Coordinator Human Resources
Liz Peddie
HR Services, Training and Development

OHS Management/Workcover

Manager Infrastructure 
Assets
John Canny 

Asset Management

Capital Works

Facilities and Asset Maintenance

Plant/Fleet Management

Manager Infrastructure 
Operations
Mark Leitinger
Road and Drainage Maintenance

Parks and Gardens

Environmental Programs 

Waste Management 

Environmental Health Services

Local Laws

Emergency Management

Manager Development  
& Environment 
Vacant
Strategic Planning

Statutory Planning Services

Building Control Services

Economic/Business Development

Tourism/Events

Development Engineering Assessment

Coordinator Grants  
Sandy Keath

Grant Source and Acquittal
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2014-2015 – the year in review
Our Community Goal

Strategic objective Achievements Challenges Year ahead

•	 The	Access Murrindindi 
Project has been 
successfully completed, 
culminating in a launch 
of the Access Murrindindi 
Booklet on 4 May 2015, 
which covers Marysville, 
Alexandra, Eildon, Yea 
and Kinglake.

•	 The	shire	wide	Show	me	
the	Money!	Grant	Forum	
event was delivered 
in May 2015 and had 
over 77 community 
participants listening 
to presentations and 
attending grant skill 
development sessions.

We will support and 
promote health and 
well-being, social 
connectedness and 
community involvement.

•	 Planning	of	Home	Based	
Child Care and Aged and 
Disability Services in the 
context of changing State 
and	Federal	Government	
social policy.  

•	 Updating	recreational	
strategy plans to assist 
in long term planning 
of parks and recreation 
facilities.

•	 Undertake	an	
assessment of 
community needs with 
respect to recreation 
and use of open space 
facilities and programs.

•	 Support	a	partnership	
between aged care 
providers to retain and 
strengthen aged care 
services in the Shire.

Our Environment Goal

•	 The	review	of	the	
Municipal Emergency 
Management Plan was 
adopted by Council in 
October 2014.

•	 The	Resource	Recovery	
Centres recycled 71.2% 
of all waste entering the 
sites during the year.

We will manage our 
natural and built 
environment in a 
responsible manner.

•	 Identifying	and	seeking	
opportunities to fund 
the Capital Works 
renewal programs to 
assist in addressing the 
Infrastructure Renewal 
gap.

•	 Managing	expectations	
from the community in 
relation to the Council’s 
ability to reduce 
municipal fire risks within 
resourcing levels.

•	 Conduct	a	review	of	the	
Significant Landscapes 
Study.

•	 Develop	a	policy	that	
defines the basis by 
which Council will fund 
infrastructure renewal 
and seek government 
endorsement.

Strategic objective Achievements Challenges Year ahead

11

MURRINDINDI SHIRE COUNCILANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015



2014-2015 – the year in review
Our Economy Goal

•	 Following	strong	
advocacy relating 
to mobile phone 
deficiencies across the 
shire, federal funding was 
announced for eight new 
mobile base stations in 
Murrindindi to address 
existing communication 
black spots.  

•	 Council	made	a	successful	
bid for the Rural Council’s 
Victoria Summit to be held 
in Marysville in 2016.  

We will support the 
sustainable growth 
of Murrindindi Shire’s 
businesses and the local 
economy.

•	 Identifying	and	
implementing 
mechanisms to promote 
the shire and its 
attractions that provide 
the best value for money 
given Council’s limited 
resources.

•	 Attracting	new	
residents, building 
investor confidence and 
growing employment 
opportunities at a time 
of widespread fiscal 
restraint.

•	 Investigate	the	
creation of seed 
funding to support the 
establishment of new 
businesses in the Shire.

•	 In	partnership	with	other	
agencies, undertake a 
feasibility study for the 
Giant	Trees	Trail	linking	
all our State and National 
Parks.

Strategic objective Achievements Challenges Year ahead

Our Council

•	 Council	undertook	
substantial consultation 
with the community on 
options to help meet 
the funding shortfall 
arising from the gifting 
to Council of new 
and expanded assets 
following the 2009 fires.

•	 Council’s	Rating Strategy 
was adopted at the March 
2015 Council meeting 
following extensive 
community consultation.

We will provide strategic 
leadership and effective 
governance that supports 
the aspirations of our 
community.

•	 Continuing	to	work	
with the community to 
improve its satisfaction 
with Council operations, 
advocacy and overall 
performance.

•	 Preparing	Council’s	
operations for the 
introduction of the State 
Government’s	proposed	
rate capping and 
variation framework.

•	 Engage	the	community	
on Council’s strategy 
to give greater 
responsibility to 
communities for 
managing infrastructure.

•	 Increase	the	capacity	
to attract grants to 
support achievement 
of Council’s strategic 
objectives.

Strategic objective Achievements Challenges Year ahead
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Calendar of events
July 2014

•	 Council seeks community comment 
and feedback on the Murrindindi Shire 
Council and Lake Mountain Alpine Resort 
Municipal Emergency Management Plan 
(MEMP) and the draft Yea Structure 
Plan, which examines future land use, 
development, growth potential and 
servicing for the Yea township.

•	 The	adoption	of	Council’s	Governance 
Local Law 2 sees improved community 
participation in council meetings.

•	 Council	undertakes	a	feasibility	study	
for the proposed construction of a 
trail connecting Alexandra, Thornton 
and	Eildon	(and	Lake	Eildon)	to	the	
Great	Victorian	Rail	Trail	as	part	of	
the Advancing Country Towns (ACT) 
initiative.

•	 A	group	of	Vietnamese	Delegates	
visits Murrindindi Shire Council to 
learn more about the Shire’s economy, 
growth areas and business investment 
potential, and the role of local 
government in community recovery 
following disasters, with particular 
interest in the aftermath of the 2009 
bushfires.

•	 Two	new	citizens	are	welcomed	at	a	
ceremony held in Alexandra. 

•	 Alexandra	Secondary	College	students	
brave the cold weather to help 
plant trees at Mt Pleasant Reserve in 
Alexandra under a program run by the 
Murrindindi Climate Network. 

•	 The Watts Working Better Project is 
officially launched. The Project involves 
changing more than 12,600 street lights 
to more energy efficient alternatives 
across the municipalities of Benalla, 
Campaspe,	Greater	Shepparton,	
Mansfield, Moira, Mitchell, Murrindindi, 
Strathbogie and Wangaratta.

August 2014

•	 The	Y	Water	Discovery	Centre	in	Yea	is	
officially opened. 

•	 Council	adopts	its	Waste	and	Resource	
Recovery Strategy Plan which prioritises 

re-use and recycling ahead of disposal 
to landfill and outlines strategies and 
actions to achieve this.

•	 Council	formally	adopts	its Rural 
Roadside Management Plan and 
associated Guidelines, setting out 
Council’s role, responsibilities and 
expectations and providing helpful 
information on how to conduct 
specific activities with consideration to 
protecting the roadside conservation 
value. 

•	 Council	reaches	out	to	the	community	
in finding a solution to its $1.76 
million annual shortfall, evaluating 
a range of potential measures that 
might be applied in the absence of 
additional financial support from the 
State	Government.	Feedback	is	sought	
through a variety of methods including 
a Facebook page dedicated to the 
campaign.

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council’s	Meals	on	
Wheels team joins almost 700 other 
Meals on Wheels services across 
Australia to celebrate the 61st National 
Meals on Wheels Day. 

•	 Six	new	citizens	are	welcomed	at	a	
ceremony held in Alexandra. 

•	 The	Yea	Branch	of	Red	Cross	celebrates	
its centenary and Council hosts a 
morning tea to acknowledge the 
milestone. 

•	 One	of	Council’s	longest	serving	staff	
members Helen Brookes retires after 30 
years of cheerful and dedicated service 
in the field of Aged and Disability 
Services. 

September 2014

•	 The	Yea	Showgrounds	and	Recreation	
Reserve receives grant funding from the 
State	Government	along	with	additional	
support from Murrindindi Shire Council 
to put towards major improvements to 
its sporting facilities. 

•	 Council	supports	the	Alexandra	&	
District	Open	Garden	Committee	to	
install identification signage on a 
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Calendar of events

number	of	significant	trees	in	Leckie	
Park, Alexandra. 

•	 Council	welcomes	the	opportunity	
to present the Shire as a potential 
investment location to a group of 
visiting delegates from China.  

•	 Two	new	citizens	are	welcomed	at	a	
ceremony held in Alexandra.

•	 New	development	plans	are	approved	
by Council to guide future residential 
subdivision in Alexandra and Yea and 
assist with the facilitation of sustainable 
population and economic growth in the 
Shire.    

•	 A	new	weighbridge	is	installed	at	the	
Alexandra	Landfill	which	immediately	
improves daily operations. The bridge 
operates exclusively on solar power and 
ensures fair and consistent pricing of all 
waste entering the facility for disposal. 

October 2014

•	 Council’s	Advocacy	Funding	Campaign	
continues to attract valuable feedback 
on the funding options Council is 
considering.  

•	 Recycling	facilities	are	improved	across	
all of Council’s Resource Recovery 
Centres with the introduction of ‘hopper 
style’ recycling skip bins. 

•	 Another	group	of	Vietnamese	Delegates	
visit Murrindindi Shire Council.

•	 Two	new	citizens	are	welcomed	in	front	
of family and friends at a ceremony held 
at Alexandra. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	hosts	its	
second Business Forum to share ideas 
about growing the Shire. In attendance 
were local business and representatives 
from the real estate, financial services, 
banking and conveyancing sectors. 

•	 Council	releases	its	Year	One	progress	
report on the actions of its Public 
Health and Wellbeing Plan 2013-2017. 
The Plan sets out to actively promote 
and strengthen healthy and active 
communities in Murrindindi Shire and 
in its first year a number of significant 

outcomes had been achieved. 

•	 Murrindindi Shire Council is the proud 
winner	of	Tourism	Victoria’s	Local	
Government	Award	for	Tourism.	The	key	
theme of Council’s award submission 
was	“Getting	Better	Outcomes	
through Collaboration and Building 
Relationships”.  

•	 Bollygum	Adventure	Playground	in	
Kinglake wins a Kidsafe National Design 
Award, recognising excellence and 
innovation in the provision of safe, 
creative playspaces. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	re-elects	Cr	
Margaret Rae as Mayor and Cr John 
Kennedy as Deputy Mayor for a second 
12 month term. 

•	 Council	declares	a	two	week	amnesty	
period on open air burning to allow 
residents/landowners to prepare their 
properties for the summer fire season. 

•	 The	formal	period	for	commenting	on	
Council’s Funding Advocacy Campaign 
closes with around 150 responses 
received. With a clear preference to 
avoid an increase in residential rates 
Council decides on a mix of the other 
five options to share the burden in the 
most equitable way.

•	 The	Marysville	Skate	Park and barbeque 
shelter is officially opened with a 
community barbecue.

November 2014

•	 Murrindindi	Shire’s	street	lights	begin	
to be fitted with energy efficient light 
globes under the Watts Working Better 
Program. Stage One saw more than 300 
80W Mercury Vapour residential street 
lights replaced with T5 lights across 
Murrindindi Shire. 

•	 Councillors	and	staff	welcome	Elaine	
Wyatt to the organisation to fill the 
vacant	role	of	General	Manager	
Infrastructure and Development 
Services.

•	 The	Tower	Motel	in	Marysville	is	
transformed with support from 
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Murrindindi Shire Council, and grant 
funding assistance from the Marysville 
and Surrounds Tourism and Events 
Program (MSTEP) and a matching 
investment contribution from the 
Federal	Government.	The	Motel	was	one	
of the few commercial buildings left 
standing in the main street of Marysville 
following the 2009 bushfires.  

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Mayor	Margaret	Rae,	
Councillor John Kennedy and CEO 
Margaret Abbey play host to another 
group of visiting delegates, this time 
from Ho Chi Minh City. 

•	 Community	members,	Murrindindi	
Shire Council staff and Nexus Primary 
Health celebrate the ‘International Day 
of People with Disability’ by building 
prosthetic hands for amputee landmine 
victims throughout the developing 
world. 

•	 Another	three	new	citizens	are	
welcomed and celebrated with a 
ceremony in Alexandra.  

•	 The	Eildon	Bowling	Club	is	successful	
in its application for grant funding for 
rejuvenation works to the bowling 
green access ramp, change rooms and 
toilets.  

December 2014

•	 The	2014	RACV	Great	Victorian	Bike	Ride	
tours through the Murrindindi Shire 
with an overnight stop in Alexandra. 
Approximately 4,000 bike riders 
descend	on	Leckie	Park,	turning	the	
oval into tent city!  

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	begins	
trialling a new system allowing the 
public to take materials from two of 
the Shire’s Resource Recovery Centres 
at no charge. The trial is to improve the 
efficiency of recycling, re-use and re-
purposing of unwanted materials.

•	 Another	group	of	Vietnamese	Delegates	
visit Murrindindi Shire Council. 

•	 Three	members	of	the	community	
are recognised for their contribution 
during the 2009 bushfires by receiving 

National Emergency Medals, presented 
in Alexandra. 

•	 Three	new	citizens	are	welcomed	at	a	
ceremony held in Alexandra.

•	 Operation	of	the	Y	Water	Discovery	
Centre in Yea is officially handed 
over to the Y Water Discovery Centre 
Association following the signing of a 
Memorandum of Understanding and 
lease agreement for the building and 
grounds. 

•	 The	Murrindindi Shire Council and 
Lake Mountain Alpine Resort Municipal 
Emergency Management Plan (MEMP) 
passes its statutory audit ensuring 
that it meets emergency management 
requirements and the needs of the 
Municipality. 

January 2015

•	 Australia	Day	is	celebrated	throughout	
the Shire with nine celebrations 
coordinated by dedicated and hard 
working community groups. Three 
Australia Day awards were presented 
at celebrations in Yea, Marysville and 
Flowerdale, and a new Citizen was 
welcomed in ceremony held at Eildon.

•	 Cricket	enthusiasts	in	Kinglake	are	
treated to a visit from the ICC Cricket 
World Cup Trophy as part of its official 
2015 tour. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	Trainee	
Sophie	Curren	is	named	SKILLED	Group	
Victorian Trainee of the Year. 

February 2015

•	 Council	staff	roll	up	their	sleeves	to	do	
their bit for Clean Up Australia Day. 
Fifteen staff volunteered a portion of 
their work day to clean up a section of 
Alexandra’s UT Creek. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	hosts	an	
information evening for building 
practitioners. Attendees from around 
the district gained a better insight 
into the role that Council plays in the 
development process. The evening 
provided a platform for general 
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discussion and valuable information 
sharing on topics such as changes to 
building standards and regulations and 
the expectations of Council’s Building 
Surveyors when conducting on-site 
inspections.

•	 Mayor	Margaret	Rae,	Councillors	and	
Chief Executive Officer Margaret Abbey 
welcomes	His	Excellency	General	the	
Honourable Sir Peter Cosgrove and Her 
Excellency	Lady	Cosgrove	to	the	Y	Water	
Discover Centre at Yea Wetlands.

•	 Council	welcomes	another	citizen	at	a	
ceremony in Alexandra. 

March 2015

•	 A	FReeZA	pool	party	to	mark	the	end	
of another great summer season at 
Yea pool doubles as a final hurrah 
before the facility undergoes a major 
redevelopment. Work on the $1.08 
million redevelopment begins just days 
after the pool’s end of season closure. 

•	 Staff	from	Council’s	Planning,	Building,	
Infrastructure and Environmental 
Health Units hold information sessions 
in Kinglake and Marysville to assist 
residents affected by the 2009 bushfires 
who are yet to rebuild.

•	 Council’s	Planning	Unit	is	awarded	
the 2015 High Commendation Rural 
Category Municipal Excellence by the 
Association of Consulting Surveyors 
Victoria Inc. (ACSV). The award 
recognises excellence in dealing with 
subdivision applications. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	proceeds	with	
the installation of a Recreation Vehicle 
Discharge Point in the car parking 
area located in the Station Street 
road	reserve	opposite	Leckie	Park	in	
Alexandra. The site allows for caravans 
and campervans to responsibly 
discharge their sewer waste. 

•	 A	‘Mechanics	Institute	of	Victoria’	plaque	
is installed and unveiled at Council’s 
Alexandra	Library,	in	recognition	and	
celebration of the earliest incarnation 
of the library as a ‘Mechanic’s Institute’, 

which was formed in 1877. 

•	 Council’s	Rating Strategy is adopted by 
Council. The Rating Strategy sets out to 
achieve an equitable approach to the 
distribution of rates across different 
ratepayer categories in the Shire.

•	 The	Terip	Terip	community	celebrates	
the opening of its newly resurfaced 
tennis courts. The project was made 
possible	through	a	State	Government	
grant contribution of $65,000 sought 
through Sport Recreation Victoria’s 
Community Facility Funding Program. 
The Terip Terip Tennis Club and 
Recreation Reserve Committee of 
Management also contributed a further 
$20,000 with Murrindindi Shire Council 
adding an extra $12,800 in addition to 
managing the project. 

•	 Alexandra’s	Rotary	Park	comes	alive	
as Murrindindi Shire Council hosts 
a ‘Harmony Day’ event to celebrate 
Murrindindi Shire’s cultural diversity. 

April 2015

•	 Council’s	2015/16 Draft Budget and 
second year review of its Council Plan 
incorporating the Strategic Resource Plan 
(SRP) is put out for public exhibition. At 
the half-way point in the period covered 
by the Council Plan, Council is confident 
that its goals remain achievable within 
the limits of its carefully managed 
resources.

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	was	
recognised on the national stage at the 
2015 QANTAS Australian Tourism Award 
Ceremony in Adelaide with a bronze 
award. 

•	 The	Alexandra	Library	welcomes	new	
residents to the area through the 
introduction of a new program called 
‘New Networks’ aimed getting people 
together over an old fashioned cup of 
tea. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	is	selected	to	
host the Rural Councils Victoria Summit 
in March 2016.  The Summit will be 
held in Marysville and surrounds. Being 
chosen to host the event is both an 
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honour and a privilege. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	takes	out	
the	top	spot	at	the	2015	Victorian	Local	
Government	Management	Australasia	
(LGMA)	Challenge.	The	team	of	six	
ended ahead of 27 other Victorian 
Councils for the accolade. They went on 
to compete at the National level in June.

•	 Yea	is	treated	to	the	musical	talents	
of secondary students from the 
Murrindindi Shire and members of the 
Murrindindi, Mitchell and Strathbogie 
Shires’	FReeZA	programs.	Over	60	
young people participated in an all 
day music workshop where they 
collaborated to write and record a song 
called Master Plan as well as create an 
accompanying video clip.  The song 
and video clip focus on the message 
of building your future and striving to 
achieve your goals.

•	 The	Murrindindi	Men’s	Shed Cluster 
receives a funding boost of $5,000 
following a successful grant application 
through Murrindindi Shire Council’s 
Community	Grant	Program.	The	
money was to be put towards assisting 
members of the Men’s Shed Cluster 
to attend the Community Men’s Shed 
Annual Conference in Newcastle in 
October 2015. 

May 2015

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	is	showcased	at	the	
Regional	Victoria	Living	Expo	staged	
at the Melbourne Convention and 
Exhibition Centre.

•	 The	Murrindindi	Shire	Mobility Maps 
Booklet is launched, an initiative of 
Murrindindi Shire Council’s Access 
and Inclusion Committee, providing 
information on accessible services and 
facilities within the Shire. 

•	 The	World	War	One	(WWI)	community	
roadshow	‘ANZAC	Centenary	–	Victoria’s	
Journey of Remembrance’ visits Yea 
Library	entertaining	audiences	with	
storytelling, live theatre performances, 
video, guest speakers and interactive 
content.

•	 Council	declares	a	two	week	amnesty	
period on open air burning for 
residents/landowners following the end 
of the declared fire danger period.

•	 The	Princess	Alexandra	statue	in	Leckie	
Park, Alexandra undergoes an extensive 
refurbishment to restore it to its former 
glory. 

•	 Preparatory	work	begins	on	the	
important task of replacing the ageing 
Ghin	Ghin	Bridge	across	the	Goulburn	
River with a new two-lane bridge.

•	 Council	hosts	its	first	Show	me	the	
Money!	Grant	Forum,	developed	to	
inspire, educate and improve the 
capacity of individuals and groups to 
seek and administer grant funding. The 
successful forum was attended by 77 
community members. 

•	 Five	members	of	the	community	are	
recognised for their contribution during 
the 2009 bushfires by receiving National 
Emergency Medals, presented in 
Toolangi.

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	in	
conjunction with Microchips Australia 
Pty	Ltd	hold	a	microchipping	day	as	
part of the RSPCA Million Paws Walk in 
Eildon. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	partners	
with	the	Alexandra	Lions	Club	to	host	
a Beyond Blue Community Information 
evening in Alexandra. Over 60 people 
attended. 

•	 The	Murrindindi	Children’s	Network	
hosts its second Early Years Conference. 
Titled ‘Three Wishes’, the conference 
brings together 85 early years’ 
professionals from within and outside 
the Shire of Murrindindi.

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council	Mayor	
Margaret Rae hands over the keys to the 
Topsie	Gully	Quarry	to	the	new	owners,	
the	LS	Quarry	Group.	

•	 Council	acknowledges	and	thanks	its	
volunteers with a special music event to 
coincide with National Volunteer Week.

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Council’s	2015/16 
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Budget and second year review of its 
Council Plan 2013-2017 incorporating the 
Strategic Resource Plan (SRP) are formally 
adopted.

•	 Federal	Environment	Minister,	the	
Hon	Greg	Hunt	classifies	Leadbeater’s	
possum as ‘critically endangered’ – 
the highest level of protection under 
federal legislation. Council resolves to 
commend the Minister on his actions 
and request he consider measures to 
compel	the	Victorian	State	Government	
to cease logging in the Central 
Highlands Region within Murrindindi 
Shire Council. 

•	 The	Mayor,	Councillors	and	CEO	
welcome another group of visiting 
Vietnamese Delegates from Ho Chi 
Minh City.

June 2015

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	hosts	the	19th	
annual Truck, Ute and Rod Show in 
Alexandra. A memorial service is held 
at the Victorian Truck Drivers’ Memorial 
in Rotary Park for the second year after 
the memorial’s official unveiling at last 
year’s event.

•	 The	third	quarter	report	on	the	
Murrindindi Shire Council Plan 2013-
2017 shows good progress in achieving 
Council’s goals and objectives. 

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	Councillors	host	
two groups of visiting Vietnamese 
Delegates eager to learn more about 
our industries and tourism attractions. 

•	 Free	parent	information	sessions	are	
held in Alexandra and Yea focusing on 
the topic of managing sleep problems. 

•	 Councillor	Cris	Ruhr	and	Councillor	
Bernie Magner submit their resignations 
from Council due to competing 
work commitments. Preparations 
get underway for the holding of by-
elections in August 2015.

•	 Murrindindi	Shire	plays	host	to	the	
annual Municipal Association of 
Victoria Rural and Regional Planning 
Conference. The conference held at 
Vibe Hotel, Marysville has over 190 
delegates attending from around the 
State. Council’s Planning and Building 
staff take groups on a tour of the fire- 
affected areas of the Shire to share their 
experiences of the rebuilding process. 

•	 Nine	officers	from	Council’s	Community	
Services department successfully 
complete a Certificate IV in Aged Care. 
Participants attended the face to face 
course in their own time, one day each 
month with much of the study being 
completed outside of the class time.  

•	 The	team	of	six	Council	staff	members	
who	won	the	State	level	Local	
Government	Management	Australasia	
(LGMA)	Challenge	in	March	represent	
Victoria at the National Finals. While the 
team didn’t come away with a place in 
the top three, the judging panel said 
all teams performed to a very high 
standard, and it was a tough race to call. 

•	 Council	welcomes	the	decision	by	
the	Federal	Government	to	fix	eight	
mobile phone black spot areas 
across Murrindindi Shire, under the 
Federal	Government’s	Mobile	Black	
Spot Program. The long-awaited 
announcement will bring about much 
improved mobile phone coverage in 
Murrindindi Shire. 
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Financial overview 2014-2015
The following graphs are a summary of Council’s financial reporting for the year ending 30 June 2015. For further financial 
detail refer to the Financial Report at the back of this report.
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The following graphs are a summary of Council's financial reporting for the year ended 30 June 
2015. For further financial detail refer to the Financial Report at the back of this report. 
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Operating Expense Breakdown  
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Capital Expenditure Breakdown
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Capital Expenditure Breakdown 
 

 
Council’s operating surplus posted for the financial year of $4.96m and the variance to budget of 
$5.24m is primarily attributed to savings made in expenditure, particularly relating to materials 
and services ($1.48m), as well as the advanced payment of the 2015-16 Financial Assistance 
Grant from the Commonwealth government of $2.16m which was unexpectedly made to all local 
Councils by the Commonwealth government on 30 June 2015. Council also received positive 
movements against budget for non-monetary contributions ($1.39m), and for other income 
($1.1m). 
 
The savings achieved in materials and services expenditure primarily relate to budgeted 
expenditure relating to the New & Gifted Assets which has been transferred to a financial reserve 
in accordance with Council’s policy for putting aside funds for known future renewal costs. With 
the sale of the Topsie Gully Quarry no crushing of materials was undertaken which generated a 
further saving of $150k, in addition to the $300k received from the purchaser. Further significant 
savings were achieved in facilities maintenance, insurance premiums and claims, and valuation 
costs that were deferred until 2015-16. 
 
This result has contributed to Council’s increase in equity by $14.0m. The favourable operating 
surplus, combined with Council’s improved cash position and repayment of debt, has helped 
ensure a healthier working capital position at the end of the 2015-16 financial year. 

Roads
19.1%

Library books
1.4%

Fixtures, 
fittings and 

furniture
1.2%

Plant, 
machinery and 

equipment
13.8%

Buildings 22.7%

Drainage  
5.7%

Footpaths and 
cycleways  

8.6%

Bridges  
27.5%

Council’s operating surplus 
posted for the financial 
year of $4.96m and 
the variance to budget 
of $5.24m is primarily 
attributed to savings made 
in expenditure, particularly 
relating to materials and 
services ($1.48m), as well 
as the advanced payment 
of the 2015-16 Financial 
Assistance	Grant	from	
the Commonwealth 
government of $2.16m 
which was unexpectedly 
made to all local Councils 
by the Commonwealth 
government on 30 June 
2015. Council also received 
positive movements against 

budget for non-monetary 
contributions ($1.39m), and 
for other income ($1.1m).

The savings achieved in 
materials and services 
expenditure primarily relate 
to budgeted expenditure 
relating	to	the	New	&	Gifted	
Assets which has been 
transferred to a financial 
reserve in accordance with 
Council’s policy for putting 
aside funds for known future 
renewal costs. With the sale 
of	the	Topsie	Gully	Quarry	
no crushing of materials was 
undertaken which generated 
a further saving of $150k, 
in addition to the $300k 
received from the purchaser. 

Further significant savings 
were achieved in facilities 
maintenance, insurance 
premiums and claims, and 
valuation costs that were 
deferred until 2015-16.

This result has contributed to 
Council’s increase in equity 
by $14.0m. The favourable 
operating surplus, combined 
with Council’s improved cash 
position and repayment of 
debt, has helped ensure a 
healthier working capital 
position at the end of the 
2015-16 financial year.

A further breakdown of 
Council’s revenue and 
operational expenditure 

performance is provided in 
the notes to the financial 
statements that are attached 
to this annual report. 
Note 2 provides a 
comparison of Council’s 
income statement to its 
original budget and an 
explanation of variances.
Notes 3-8 provide further 
analysis of Council’s revenue 
streams (rates, charges, 
grants, contributions, etc.). 
Notes 10-15 provide a 
breakdown of Council’s 
expenditure, which includes 
employee costs, materials 
and services, borrowing 
costs, doubtful debts and 
depreciation.

Financial overview 2014-2015
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Our Community
We will support and promote health and wellbeing, social 
connectedness and community involvement

Our goal of Council and our community is to create vibrant, 
interconnected and inclusive communities.

Murrindindi Vision 2030 supports a strong sense of pride and 
belonging across the Shire. From arts programs, improved 
footpaths, on-going support of fire affected communities 
and new and upgraded recreational facilities; we aim to put 
the pieces in place for a healthy and active community. We 
will achieve this vision through strong support programs and 
robust policy decisions.

Our Environment
We will manage our natural and built environment in a 
responsible manner

Council will continue to look for ways to protect significant 
environmental values along with balancing the need to 
develop and manage our built environment. This will be 
achieved through leadership and cooperation with other 
agencies and community networks. Our Council will be 
recognised for its environmental practices as we look to 
balance our natural surrounds with our need to grow. We 
aim to achieve communities that are sustainable in the use 
of natural resources while developing planning policies that 
embrace and protect our rural landscapes. 

Performance reporting

Our Economy
We will support the sustainable growth of Murrindindi 
Shire’s businesses and the local economy

A vibrant economy will attract people to our region and 
in turn open further opportunities for business expansion 
and investment. This will increase employment prospects, 
social and cultural benefits and population growth. A key 
focus of our activities will be the further development and 
enhancement of educational and training options across the 
Shire. While our attention will continue to be a vibrant tourism 
and agricultural-based economy, we need to also advocate for 
improved telecommunications networks that will encourage 
diverse and entrepreneurial businesses the opportunities to 
establish.

Our Council
We will provide strategic leadership and effective 
governance that supports the aspirations of our 
Community  

By ensuring our long term financial sustainability, Council’s 
priorities will be directed towards the implementation of 
the Murrindindi Vision 2030. Achieving the outcomes of this 
community-driven vision

will be our strong advocacy to all levels of government on 
local needs and issues, the implementation of a master plan 
to grow the Murrindindi Shire rate base through sound 
planning and support for economic development and the 
effective and efficient operation of the Council. By achieving 
this Murrindindi Shire will be a place of prosperity and 
opportunity. 

We report on our performance under the four goals of the Council Plan 2013-2017.
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Our Community
Health and Wellbeing
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will advocate for and support the lifelong needs of our 
communities at all ages and all stages

Social Connectedness
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will encourage inclusive, creative and resilient 
communities

Achievements

•	 The	Murrindindi	Children’s	Network	Facebook	Page	went	
live and was promoted through Council’s service providers 
and community networks.

•	 The	Access Murrindindi Project has been successfully 
completed, culminating in a launch of the Access 
Murrindindi Booklet on 4 May 2015, which covers Marysville, 
Alexandra, Eildon, Yea and Kinglake.  

•	 The	Murrindindi	Youth	Partnership	secured	support	from	
90% of Primary and Secondary Schools in the shire to 
deliver the Murrindindi Resilient Youth Project, which will 
occur in 2015-2017 in support of youth wellbeing.

•	 The	shire	wide	‘Show	me	the	Money’!	Grant	Forum	event	
was delivered in May 2015 and had over 77 community 
participants listening to presentations and attending grant 
skill development sessions.

•	 The	Social Connections Project was completed which 
aimed to reduce the social isolation of people living in 
residential aged care and promote opportunities for 
residents and the broader community to come together.  
The project engaged over 40 residents across Kellock 
Lodge	and	Darlingford	Upper	Goulburn	Nursing	Home	
and community members to create a community choir, the 
Golden	Oldies.

Challenges

•	 Long	term	planning	of	Home	Based	Child	Care	and	Aged	
and Disability Services in the context of changing State and 
Federal	Government	social	policy		

•	 Ensuring	community	facilities	are	effectively	managed	and	
well utilised without significant costs to Council 

•	 Updating	recreation	strategy	plans	to	assist	in	long	term	
planning of parks and recreation facilities.

Looking forward 

•	 Facilitating	the	development	of	a	Community	Arts	and	
Culture Forum. 

•	 Continuing	to	implement	the	Municipal Public Health and 
Wellbeing Plan, in conjunction with the community and key 
service partners.

•	 Undertaking	an	assessment	of	community	needs	with	
respect to recreation and use of open space facilities and 
programs.

•	 Supporting	the	development	of	a	partnership	between	
aged care providers to retain and strengthen aged care 
services in the Shire.

•	 Seeking	funding	to	increase	the	capacity	of	communities	
to undertake their own local planning and management of 
community projects and facilities.

Community Engagement
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will actively engage with our communities to increase 
participation and community input
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Implement 
recommendations 
of the Early Years 
Social Media and 
Communications 
Strategy

Completed The Children’s Network Facebook page has been operational since April 2015 and 
was officially launched at the Early Year’s Conference in May 2015. Usage is increasing 
steadily and the page is being used to promote children’s events, discussions, 
conferences, forums, parenting advice and health information. Feedback received 
from the community and funding providers has been positive. Three professional 
development forums have been completed targeting providers of early years 
support, health and education services.  Forums have focused on family violence, 
analysis of key early years data and strategic planning in preparation for a collective 
impact initiative.

Council Plan activities
1.1 Health and Wellbeing – We will advocate for and support the lifelong needs of our 

community

1.1.1 Advocate for and support flexible delivery of early years services

Review the delivery 
of the Planned Activity 
Program to enhance 
flexibility and access

Completed The Planned Activity Programs continue to be well attended with a number of new 
venues introduced following a review of the service. The staff are regularly seeking 
feedback from the clients and looking for ideas for improvement to enhance service 
delivery. Planning is in progress for a forum in the Kinglake area to identify needs of 
the residents with the intention to develop new groups. This will ensure equal access 
and opportunity across the Murrindindi Shire. 

1.1.2 Promote and deliver effective transition through integrated aged care options

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Progress the Social 
Connections Project 
in partnership with 
residential aged care 
facilities to improve 
the social connections 
of older people in the 
community

Completed The Social Connections Project was completed during the year.  The project aimed 
to reduce the social isolation of people living in residential aged care and promote 
opportunities for residents and the broader community to come together.  The 
project	engaged	over	40	residents	across	Kellock	Lodge	and	Darlingford	Upper	
Goulburn	Nursing	Home	and	community	members	to	create	a	community	choir,	
the	Golden	Oldies.		The	support	of	the	Alexandra	Singers	and	activity	staff	at	both	
facilities means the choir will continue to run on a fortnightly basis and can be 
sustained	into	the	future.		The	Golden	Oldies	are	practising	to	perform	with	the	
Australian Welsh Male Choir when it visits Alexandra in November 2015.

1.1.3 Support older people to remain active and healthy and connected to their community

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Coordinate a Health 
and Wellbeing 
Consortium of 
services across 
Murrindindi Shire 
to support joint 
planning and 
coordinated service 
provision

Completed The Health and Wellbeing Consortium has met regularly over the past year to assist 
in the ongoing development and evaluation of the Municipal Public Health and 
Wellbeing Plan. There are a number of impending changes to funding and service 
delivery arrangements across a range of community services as a result of recent 
Federal	and	State	Government	social	policy.		The	Consortium	has	agreed	that	there	
is a range of opportunities for agencies to work collaboratively to advocate for, and 
deliver the best outcomes to communities across Murrindindi Shire.  To this end, a 
further two strategic planning forums will be held in the coming months to build on 
these opportunities.

1.1.4 Strengthen partnerships with service providers to meet the demonstrated health needs of 
our communities

Actively engage 
with community 
health and wellbeing 
issues through 
implementation of 
the Municipal Public 
Health and Wellbeing 
Plan

Completed The Year Two Implementation plan of the Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing 
Plan has been completed.  Activities completed under the plan have included the 
delivery of the International Day of People with a Disability community awareness 
event, Children’s Week pram strolls and healthy eating events in four locations across 
the Shire, and the Men’s Health Expo held by Alexandra District Health.  Council 
continued to work with the Prevention of Violence Against Women and Children 
Working	Group	to	implement	the	Courageous Conversations Project in Murrindindi.   
Council also developed a Draft Gaming Policy Framework and undertook community 
consultation on this topic.  The Alexandra District Health in conjunction with 
community members has developed a Food Op-shop in the Marysville Triangle area 
of the Shire.  Work is underway to prepare the Year Two Implementation Progress 
Report and to finalise the Year 3 Implementation Plan. 

1.1.5 Actively engage with community health and wellbeing issues through implementation of 
the Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan

Coordinate and 
support the 
Murrindindi Youth 
Partnership to plan 
and deliver joint 
initiatives to address 
the needs of young 
people

Completed The Murrindindi Youth Partnership secured support from 90% of Primary and 
Secondary Schools in the shire to deliver the Murrindindi Resilient Youth Project. 
The project will be delivered over 2015-2017 and enable greater awareness and 
collaboration to support youth wellbeing. Outcomes from the available data 
will guide the Murrindindi Youth Partnership’s strategic focus moving forward. 
These outcomes and strategic focus will be referenced in the Municipal Health and 
Wellbeing Plan.

1.1.6 Work with young people and service providers to identify and respond to youth priorities 
across their respective communities

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities
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Progress the 
redevelopment of the 
Yea Swimming Pool

Ongoing A tender to re-develop the Yea Swimming Pool was successfully let in January 2015. 
Since this time significant progress has been made on the aquatic and building 
redevelopment works. The new kiosk and plant shed have been erected and the pre 
existing amenities upgraded. It is anticipated the upgraded facility will be completed 
well in advance of the pool opening in November 2015, enabling a smooth hand 
over to Council’s Aquatic Operations team.  

1.1.7 Support participation in a range of sport recreation and leisure activities

1.2 Social Connectedness – We will encourage inclusive, creative and resilient communities

1.2.1 Prioritise the activities of Council and engage other stakeholders to improve people’s 
access and inclusion

Promote Council’s 
social support 
programs to allow 
and encourage 
innovative service 
delivery to meet the 
needs of people with 
a disability

Completed Planned	Activity	Group	Officers	have	developed	interesting	activities	that	have	
captured the attention and imagination of Dame Pattie Menzies Centre clients 
which has really encouraged them to extend themselves.  Ongoing efforts are made 
to ensure that people with a disability are provided with an equitable access to all 
programs.   

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Complete the 
Access Yea Project 
in partnership 
with local traders 
and community 
to promote access 
friendly venues

Completed The Access Murrindindi Project has been successfully completed, culminating in a 
launch of the Access Murrindindi Booklet on the 4 May 2015.  Access audits were 
completed covering five townships across Murrindindi including Marysville, Eildon, 
Alexandra, Yea and Kinglake and key visitor information and accessible township 
features are highlighted in the booklet.  Over 40 businesses and community 
buildings in these townships were assessed as part of a Friendly Access Initiative 
which complemented the Access Murrindindi Project.  Businesses that were found 
to be access friendly were awarded the Access Friendly certification and provided 
with a certificate and sticker to display on their premises.  Access friendly maps were 
created and are on the Council website.  The Murrindindi Access Booklet is available at 
all	Council	offices,	Libraries	and	at	Visitor	Information	Centres.			

1.2.2 Ensure access and social connectedness is considered in the planning and development of 
facilities and infrastructure

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Enable community 
groups to coordinate 
and participate in 
arts and cultural 
events through the 
Community Grants 
Program and other 
initiatives

Completed In the past 12 months the Community Grants Program has supported a range of 
community groups and activities including the Yea Arts Carnivale, Yea Centenary 
Show, student leadership initiatives through the Buxton Primary School, storage 
needs for the Alexandra Timber and Tramway Museum, a welcome event for the 
Great	Victorian	Bike	Ride	and	Murrindindi	Men’s	Shed	Cluster	Choir	attendance	at	
the National Men’s Shed Conference. Council delivered a Harmony Day event to 
celebrate cultural diversity within the Shire. The event was supported by health 
and support service providers across Murrindindi and featured the African Soul 
drumming workshop.   Council’s newly revised Arts and Culture Policy was presented 
to Council and adopted in February 2015. 

1.2.3 Support participation in a wide range of artistic and cultural pursuits

Work with 
communities to build 
resilience and prepare 
for future unplanned 
events

Completed Council officers joined with Nexus Primary Health to delivery three Recovery 
Road Show events in Yea, Flowerdale and Kinglake with the aim of promoting 
services available to communities.  Council officers attended a Community Fire 
Safety Information evening at Flowerdale Community House and presented with 
the Country Fire Authority on Neighbourhood Safer Places.  The final draft of the 
Murrindindi Shire Council Relief and Recovery Plan has been completed and will be 
available for public viewing in August 2015.  Community groups, Service Clubs and 
Service Providers have been sent a letter inviting them to identify their capacity 
and capability to assist in a recovery effort through listing the resources they have 
available.  A comprehensive community consultation process has been planned 
for July and August 2015 to promote the plan and consolidate partnerships with 
communities. 

1.2.4 Work with communities to build resilience and prepare for future unplanned events

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Work with the 
Murrindindi Learn 
Local Network to 
support community 
and neighbourhood 
houses

Completed Council continued to participate in the Murrindindi Men’s Shed Network.  The 
Murrindindi	Men’s	Shed	Cluster	was	supported	to	apply	for	a	Community	Grant	
and was successful in obtaining funds to subsidise the attendance of 20 Men’s 
Shed members from across Murrindindi at the National Men’s Shed Conference in 
Canberra in October 2015. The Murrindindi Men’s Shed Choir will be performing 
at the conference.  Council remained in close contact with Community and 
Neighbourhood Houses during the year providing information and support through 
various networks and opportunities. A Council officer and Ward Councillor continue 
to sit on the Committee of Management at the Flowerdale Community House. 

1.2.5 Support people and groups to work together to strengthen connections and community 
networks

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Work in partnership 
with key partners 
to support the 
coordination of 
volunteer recruitment 
and training

Completed The	Volunteer	Advisory	Group	has	met	several	times	over	the	past	year.		There	have	
been a number of changes to the volunteer coordination capacity at Berry Street 
and they are no longer in a position to coordinate the network.  The group has 
discussed	how	the	Volunteer	Advisory	Group	may	continue	without	this	central	role	
and a survey was developed to capture each agency’s commitment and capacity to 
support its continued operation.  There was some indication of support to continue 
the group and discussions are continuing on the future purpose and focus of the 
group.  

1.2.6 Recognise, support and value volunteers

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Work with the Health 
and Wellbeing 
Consortium to 
develop an advocacy 
plan to communicate 
the need for 
additional public and 
social housing options 
in Murrindindi to 
State and Federal 
Governments

Ongoing The Health and Wellbeing Consortium members reaffirmed their commitment to the 
development of a joint advocacy plan for an increase in public and social housing 
in the Murrindindi Shire. A strategic planning session was held with Health and 
Wellbeing Consortium members in January 2015. The session focused on reviewing 
the changing landscape of service delivery in light of new State and Federal 
Government	social	policy	change	and	highlighting	the	impact	of	these	changes	to	
local communities. The Health and Wellbeing Consortium has planned to undertake 
strategic planning discussions in the coming months to progress the development 
of a shared advocacy plan.  Increased access to crisis and low cost housing remains a 
critical issue to be included in this plan.

1.2.7 Advocate for better access to public and social housing options

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Initiate locality-based 
planning process 
with an identified 
community

Deferred This activity was deferred by Council.

1.3 Community Engagement – We will actively engage with our communities to increase 
participation and community input

1.3.1 Trial and evaluate locality-based planning, that involves local communities

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Council Plan activities

Service standard 

Health inspections of aquatic facilities
[Number of authorised officerinspections of Council 
aquatic facilities / Number of Council aquatic facilities] 

Health and Safety 

Reportable safety incidents at aquatic facilities
[Number of WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety 
incidents] 

Service Cost 

Cost of outdoor aquatic facilities
[Direct cost of outdoor aquatic facilities less income 
received / Number of visits to outdoor aquatic facilities] 

Utilisation 

Utilisation of aquatic facilities
[Number of visits to aquatic facilities / Municipal 
population]

 
   

Service standard 

Compliance with Community Care Common Standards 
[Number of Community Care Common Standards 
expected outcomes met / Number of expected  
outcomes under the Community Care Common 
Standards] x100 

Utilisation 

Library	collection	usage
[Number of library collection item loans / Number of 
library collection items] 

Resource standard 

Standard of library collection 
[Number of library collection items purchased in the last 
5 years / Number of library collection items] x100 

Service cost 

Cost of library service
[Direct cost of the library service / Number of visits]

Participation  

Active library members
[Number of active library members / Municipal 
population] x100

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed performance indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.

Aquatic Facilities

Service Performance Indicators Results

Service/indicator/measure 2015 Material Variations

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

0.00

1.00

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

$15.02

Data accuracy to be reviewed in 2015/16. Results for 
2014/15 include estimates for daily family tickets which do 
not clearly specify the amount of children entering under 
this ticket.

Home and Community Care (HACC)

100.00% No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

1.57

Libraries

1.86 No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

34.78% No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

$15.36 No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

16.68% No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.
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Satisfaction 

Participation in first MCH home visit 
[Number of first MCH home visits / Number of birth 
notifications received] x100 

Service standard 

Infant enrolments in the MCH service
[Number of infants enrolled in the MCH service 
(from birth notifications received) / Number of birth 
notifications received] x100 

Participation 

Participation in the MCH service
[Number of children who attend the MCH service at 
least once (in the year) / Number of children enrolled in 
the MCH service] x100

Participation 

Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal children
[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the 
MCH service at least once (in the year) / Number of 
Aboriginal children enrolled in the MCH service] x100 
   

Maternal and Child Health (MCH)

Service Performance Indicators Results

Service/indicator/measure 2015 Material Variations

83.82% No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

89.71% No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

106.53% Participation levels are above 100% due to “drop-
in” attendees who are visiting the Murrindindi Shire, 
particularly over the summer months. These children are 
enrolled in a different municipalities program and are  
only briefly utilising the MCH service in Murrindindi  
Shire whilst on holidays or transiting through the region.

100.00% No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.
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Our Environment
Conservation of Resources
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will use resources more efficiently and effectively

Protection of the Natural Environment
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will protect and enhance the natural environment

Achievements

•	 The	review	of	the	Municipal Emergency Management 
Plan was completed and new Plan adopted by Council in 
October 2014.

•	 In	excess	of	ten	environmental	sustainability	initiatives	
were completed across a variety of groups including local 
businesses, community, Council and school groups.

•	 The	Resource	Recovery	Centres	recycled	71.2%	of	all	waste	
entering the sites during the year which is a considerable 
achievement for the council and community.

•	 A	tender	to	re-develop	the	Yea	Swimming	Pool	was	
successfully let in January 2015. Since this time significant 
progress has been made on the aquatic and building 
redevelopment works.

Challenges

•	 Managing	and	promoting	growth	within	the	shire	and	
recognizing this in the Murrindindi Planning Scheme to 
ensure the economic sustainability of the municipality 
moving forward.

•	 Managing	the	impacts	on	the	community	and	Council	
associated with the proposed implementation of the new 
State Bushfire Management Overlay and State bushfire 
provisions in the Murrindindi Planning Scheme will present 
some challenges for the Murrindindi community.

•	 Managing	expectations	from	the	community	in	relation	
to Council’s ability to reduce municipal fire risks within 
resourcing levels.

•	 Meeting	expectation	from	community	in	relation	to	
Council’s ability to reduce weed cover within tight budget 
constraints.

•	 Identifying	and	seeking	opportunities	to	fund	the	Capital	
Works renewal programs to assist in addressing the 
Infrastructure Renewal gap.

•	 Funding	the	ongoing	operation	maintenance	and	renewal	
of new and gifted assets received post 2009 Bushfires.

Planning for Future Growth
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will plan for future growth that is sensitive to the 
constraints of our natural environment whilst considering 
development needs 

Asset Management
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will apply a whole of life approach to the management 
and maintenance of Council’s assets

Looking forward 

•		 Continuing	to	improve	Council’s	energy	management	
planning and practices.

•	 Collaborating	with	key	local	Landcare	networks	to	identify	
and deliver environmental projects in Murrindindi Shire and 
to advocate for relevant funding.

•	 Conducting	a	review	of	the	Significant Landscapes Study.

•	 Advocating	for	funding	assistance	to	deliver	infrastructure	
improvements identified through relevant Council and 
regional strategies.

•	 Supporting	sustainable	industries	within	the	region	
through the provision of infrastructure advice and support.

•	 Developing	a	policy	to	guide	Council	in	its	decisions	to	take	
on or divest to the community, management responsibility 
for community assets.

•	 Developing	a	policy	that	defines	the	basis	by	which	Council	
will fund infrastructure renewal and to seek government 
endorsement of the approach.

•	 Continuing	to	seek	infrastructure	grants	to	support	future	
capital works, with a priority on infrastructure renewal.
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2.1 Conservation of Resources – We will use resources more efficiently and effectively

2.1.1 Reduce our corporate footprint by using energy, water and materials more responsibly

Implement the system 
that will identify 
baseline for corporate 
resource consumption 
and enable the 
organisation to set 
targets to reduce 
this baseline into the 
future

Completed The “Planet Footprint” resource monitoring system has been procured and 
responsibilities assigned for monitoring resource consumption within the platform.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Design and identify 
strategies to fund 
a pilot program for 
energy improvements 
in a selection of 
Council buildings

Completed Five Council buildings were identified during the year for the installation of solar 
panels as part of the energy management program of Council and these projects 
have been funded in the 2015/16 budget.

2.1.2 Encourage and recognise environmentally responsible behaviour and practices within 
Council and across the Murrindindi Shire community

Implement year two 
of the Watts Working 
Better Program

Completed Year 2 activities of the project has been completed which involved the installation 
of 356 energy efficient lights to replace existing mercury vapour public street lights. 
Preparations are being finalised for the roll out of stage two of the project which will 
involve the changing over of 178 Mercury Vapour street lights in the Alexandra and 
Yarck areas.    

In addition, Council is a participant in the $267,000 Climate Smart Agriculture project 
facilitated	by	the	Goulburn	Broken	Greenhouse	Alliance,	with	Moira	Shire	Council	
being the lead agency.  The Victorian State government is contributing $200,000 to 
the project. The appointed consultant, Deakin University, has attended a meeting 
with Council officers to detail the scope and intended outcomes of the project which 
will include spatial tools indicating a range of potential future land uses.

2.1.3 Strengthen Council’s capacity to use resources more sustainably by cooperating with the 
Goulburn Broken Greenhouse Alliance (GBGA) and community networks

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Implement year one 
actions from the 
Waste Management 
Strategy.

Progress 
Delayed

The Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy Plan identified 27 actions in Year one 
including a number of large capital projects. The completion of all the actions would 
have required a significant investment of resources that were not available and the 
action plan will be reviewed in future years in light of this. However there were a 
number of significant achievements during the year in implementing the Waste 
Management Strategy including;   

1.	 Participation	in	the	newly	formed	Goulburn	Valley	Waste	and	Resource	Recovery	
Forum;

2. Commencement of the detailed design for the new leachate pond at the 
Alexandra landfill site;

3. Establishment of a community reference group which has provided 
recommendations to Council on solutions to resolve the waste management issue 
at the Taylor Bay compound, and

4. Implementation of new contracts which commenced on 1 July 2015 for the 
collection of kerbside waste and the processing of recyclables.

2.1.4 Implement the Waste Management Strategy that seeks to promote waste minimisation 
strategies and increase opportunities for recycling and reuse of resources

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Adopt the Roadside 
Management Plan 
and Code of Practice 
for managing 
environmental values 
in Council roadside 
reserves

Completed The adopted Rural Roadside Management Plan and Code of Practice were published in 
hard copy, with an electronic version placed on Council’s website.

2.2 Protection of the Natural Environment – We will protect and enhance the natural 
environment

2.2.1  Ensure Council operations are managed in a way that minimises impact on the natural 
environment

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Implement Council’s 
Roadside Weeds and 
Pest Animal Control 
Program

Implement Council’s 
Roadside Weeds and 
Pest Animal Control 
Program

Completed

Completed

The annual roadside spraying program has been completed which included the 
spraying	of	Blackberries,	Gorse,	St	John	Wort,	Cape	Broom	and	Sweet	Briar	along	
priority Council roadsides.

Weed control works on priority roadsides identified under Council’s Roadside Weed 
and Pest Animal Control Plan were completed for the year. Key target species include 
Blackberry,	Sweet	Briar,	St	Johns	Wort,	Cape	and	English	Broom,	Gorse	and	Paterson’s	
Curse.

2.2.2 Conserve high value sites on Council controlled land and roadside reserves by reducing 
environmental threats

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Develop and deliver 
an environmental 
communications 
strategy that sets 
out how the Council 
will communicate 
with households, 
businesses and 
agencies

Completed The review of the Local Planning Policy Framework (LPPF) has incorporated strategies 
to ensure the future layout and form of residential and rural living subdivision 
and development is properly planned, recognising and protecting areas of high 
environmental	significance	and	value.	The	LPPF	encourages	concentration	of	
development in locations free from environmental constraints, where environmental 
values are protected.

2.2.3 Encourage property development across the Shire that protects and enhances 
environmental values

Council Plan activities

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Continue 
collaborating with 
key local Landcare 
networks, as well as 
regional, state and 
federal agencies to 
identify and deliver 
environmental 
projects in 
Murrindindi

Completed Council	staff	have	continued	to	liaise	with	the	Upper	Goulburn	Landcare	
Network throughout the year.  This occurred through the regular Murrindindi 
Environment	Advisory	Committee	meetings,	attendance	at	the	Goulburn	Broken	
Local	Government	Biodiversity	Reference	Group	and	by	providing	assistance	
to	local	community	groups	including	the	Blackberry	Action	Group,	the	Yea	
Wetlands Committee of Management and the Mt Pleasant Reserve Committee of 
Management.

2.2.4 Strengthen Council’s capacity to work with key agencies that have responsibility to deliver 
local, regional, state and federal environmental policy and programs

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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2.3 Planning for Future Growth – We will plan for future growth that is sensitive to the 
constraints of our natural environment whilst considering development needs

2.3.1 Improve the flexibility of the Murrindindi Planning Scheme’s to respond to growth 
in a way that balances environmental values and improves the level of safety of our 
community

Update the 
Murrindindi Planning 
Scheme (MPS), and 
incorporate the 
outcomes of the 
following major 
strategic studies:
•	MSS	
•	KFT	Plan	
•	Hume	Regional	

Growth Plan
•	Yea	Structure	Plan
•	Flowerdale	Flood	

Study

Progress 
delayed

Council is engaged in an active ongoing program of implementing changes to the 
Murrindindi Planning Scheme.	The	MSS	review,	which	includes	the	LPPF	review	was	
heard by an independent panel on 12th May 2015, and the report was received in 
June 2015.  The report recommended the adoption of the amendment with some 
minor changes.  This was presented to Council in July 2015 for adoption. 

Amendment C55, the review of the Development Plan Overlays, and C46, the 
implementation of the Yea Structure Plan, were exhibited and submissions have been 
received on both amendments.  The submissions are currently being assessed, and 
will be presented to council in the first quarter of 2015/16.  

The KFT Streetscape Master Plan was amended to reflect the feedback from the 
community and stakeholder consultation, and will be reported to Council for further 
consideration and adoption.  

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Ensure that 
Council’s emergency 
management 
planning responds 
to community safety 
needs

Completed Council has appointed its own Emergency Management Fire Coordinator (EMFC) 
to assist in ensuring Council’s emergency management responsibilities are better 
aligned with state and regional objectives. Council officers continued to participate 
with other Emergency Management Authorities in the implementation of the 
Municipal Emergency Management Plan and Municipal Fire Management Plan 
priorities. 

A full review of Council’s Municipal Relief and Recovery Plan has also occurred during 
the year.   

2.3.2  Ensure that Council’s emergency management planning responds to community safety 
needs

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Improve Council and 
community capacity 
to respond to the 
impacts of extreme 
weather events and 
longer term climate 
change

Completed

2.3.3 Improve Council and community capacity to respond to the impacts of extreme weather 
events and longer term climate change

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

The pilot energy management plan has been completed which has identified the use 
of solar panels on 5 council offices. A full Energy Management Plan will be included 
as part of the review of the Environment Strategy. Council is also participating in a 
Climate Smart Agriculture study and is working with the community on a number of 
initiatives such as the Watts Working Better Education Program. 
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Adopt and implement 
the Municipal Strategic 
Statement (MSS) 
to establish future 
directions that align 
to the Council Plan.

Completed

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Conduct a review 
of the Significant 
Landscapes Study 

Deferred

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Advocate for 
funding assistance 
to support initiatives 
linked to the Hume 
Regional Growth Plan 
implementation

Commence 
implementation of 
the Kinglake	Ranges	
Flowerdale	and	
Toolangi	Plan	and	
Streetscape Design 
Framework

Undertake a Structure 
Plan for Eildon

Completed

Progress 
Delayed

Progress 
Delayed

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

2.3.4 Adopt and implement the Municipal Strategic Statement (MSS) to establish future 
directions that align to the Council Plan

Amendment C54, the review of the Municipal Strategic Statement (MSS) and Local 
Planning Policy Framework (LPPF), was heard by an independent panel on 12th May 
2015, and the report was received in June 2015.  The report recommended the 
adoption of the amendment with some minor changes.  This is being presented to 
Council in July 2015 for adoption.

Officers	have	continued	to	meet	with	the	Department	of	Environment,	Land,	Water	
and Planning throughout the year in relation to funding opportunities to further 
enhance urban design frameworks/structure plans within the municipality, which 
align with the directions in the Hume Regional Growth Plan. 

The KFT Streetscape Master Plan was amended to reflect the result of community and 
stakeholder consultation, and will to be reported to Council for consideration and 
adoption during 2015/16.

  
Due	to	the	State	Government’s	restructure	of	its	departments	the	funding	previously	
identified for this project was put under review. The project was unable to proceed 
until the funding was confirmed in June 2015.

2.3.5 Promote environmentally sustainable design in future developments to achieve more 
energy and water efficient outcomes in our built environment

This activity has been deferred to the next financial year due to resources being 
directed to the development of Council’s Gaming Policy which is considered a higher 
priority. 

2.3.6 Review and progress Council’s implementation of the Urban Design Frameworks for 
settlements within the Shire
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2.4 Asset Management – We will apply a whole of life approach to the management and 
maintenance of Council’s assets

2.4.1 Manage and renew our existing infrastructure assets in a responsible manner

Develop a Road 
Renewal Plan which 
seeks to outline 
priorities and actions 
in relation to the 
renewal of Council’s 
road network

Develop an Asset 
Disposal Policy

Seek infrastructure 
grants to support 
future capital works 
programs to assist 
in reducing the 
Infrastructure renewal 
gap

Progress 
Delayed

Completed

Completed

Completion of this plan has been delayed to enable Council to obtain more up to 
date condition audits on its road networks and will be completed in the first half of 
the next financial year.

The draft Asset Disposal Policy has been developed and consulted on internally and is 
being considered for adoption by Council in July 2015.

Of the total of $2.4M in grants sought in the 2014/15 financial year, Council was 
granted $911k in funds that will assist in reducing the infrastructure renewal gap. The 
funding	awarded	is	for	revitalising	the	Eildon	Town	Centre,	Ghin	Ghin	Road	Safety	
Improvements, Yea Civic Centre Project, Yarck Streetscape and Yea Railway Station. 
Council	was	unsuccessful	in	its	applications	for	funds	for	the	Ghin	Ghin	Bridge	
project ($1.575M). 

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Assist community 
groups in the 
development of 
grant applications 
for infrastructure or 
services

Completed The	shire	wide	Show	me	the	Money!	Grant	Forum	event	was	delivered	in	May	2015.	
It was developed in partnership with the community and had over 77 community 
participants listening to presentations from grant providers and attending grant skill 
development sessions. Feedback received has been positive and an evaluation of the 
event will be conducted by the organising committee in the 2015/16 financial year.

2.4.2 Engage with relevant communities on the development of community infrastructure and 
services

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Develop and deliver 
services with 
consideration of the 
impacts on the natural 
environment that meet 
community needs

Develop a policy 
which guides 
Council’s decision 
making in relation to 
new infrastructure 
development

Completed

Deferred

The proposed levels of service across the roads and parks areas has been reviewed by 
the Council and implemented and will continue to be monitored into the future.

Although work has commenced on this policy, it has been deferred to the next 
financial year to be developed along with Council’s policies on infrastructure renewal 
and its decisions to take on or divest management responsibility for community 
assets.  

2.4.3 Develop and deliver services with consideration of the impacts on the natural 
environment that meet community needs

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities
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Service standard

Animals reclaimed
[Number of animals reclaimed / Number of animals 
collected] x100

Service cost

Cost of animal management service
[Direct cost of the animal management service / Number 
of registered animals]

Health and safety

Animal management prosecutions
[Number of successful animal management 
prosecutions]

Service standard

Food safety assessments

[Number of registered class 1 food premises and class 
2 food premises that receive an annual food safety 
assessment in accordance with the Food Act 1984 / 
Number of registered class 1 food premises and class 
2 food premises that require an annual food safety 
assessment in accordance with the Food Act 1984] x100

Service cost

Cost of food safety service
[Direct cost of the food safety service / Number of food 
premises registered or notified in accordance with the 
Food Act 1984]

Health and safety

Critical and major non-compliance outcome  
notifications
[Number of critical non-compliance outcome 
notifications and major non-compliance notifications 
about a food premises followed up / Number of critical 
non-compliance outcome notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a food premises] x100

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed performance indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.

Animal Management

Service Performance Indicators Results

Service/indicator/measure 2015 Material Variations

Food Safety

Council Plan activities

62.07%

 

 

$35.55

 

 
0.00

 
 

 

89.77%

 

 

$579.86

 

 

100.00%

 

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 
 
No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 
No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 
No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.
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Satisfaction of use

Sealed local road requests
[Number of sealed local road requests / Kilometres of 
sealed local roads ] x100

Condition

Sealed local roads below the intervention level
[Number of kilometres of sealed local roads below the 
renewal intervention level set by Council / Kilometres of 
sealed local roads] x100

Service cost

Cost of sealed local road reconstruction
[Direct cost of sealed local road reconstruction / Square 
metres of sealed local roads reconstructed]

Service Cost

Cost of sealed local road resealing
[Direct cost of sealed local road resealing / Square 
metres of sealed local roads resealed]

Satisfaction 

Satisfaction with sealed local roads
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how 
council has performed on the condition of sealed local 
roads]

Timeliness

Time taken to decide planning applications
[The median number of days between receipt of a 
planning application and a decision on the application]

Service standard

Planning applications decided within 60 days
[Number of planning application decisions made within 
60 days / Number of planning application decisions 
made] x100

Service cost

Cost of statutory planning service
[Direct cost of the statutory planning service / Number 
of planning applications received]

Decision making 

Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT
[Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside 
council’s decision in relation to a planning application 
/ Number of VCAT decisions in relation to planning 
applications] x100

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 
 
No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 
 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 
 
No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 
No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

0.21

 

 

87.66%

 

 

$216.85

 

 

$28.56

 

 
52.00

 
 

 

44.00

 

 
77.95%

 

 

$1,785.55

 

 
100.00%

 

 

 

Roads

Service Performance Indicators Results

Service/indicator/measure 2015 Material Variations

Statutory Planning
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Satisfaction

Kerbside bin collection requests
[Number of kerbside garbage and recycling bin 
collection requests / Number of kerbside bin collection 
households] x1000

Service standard

Kerbside collection bins missed
[Number of kerbside garbage and recycling collection 
bins missed / Number of scheduled kerbside garbage 
and recycling collection bin lifts] x10,000

Service cost

Cost of kerbside garbage bin collection service
[Direct cost of the kerbside garbage bin collection 
service / Number of kerbside garbage collection bins]

Service cost

Cost of kerbside recyclables collection service
[Direct cost of the kerbside recyclables bin collection 
service / Number of kerbside recyclables collection bins]

Waste diversion

Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill
[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected 
from kerbside bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables and 
green organics collected from kerbside bins] x100

4.95

 

 

0.58

 

 

$90.02

 
 

$52.88

 

 
36.18%

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 
 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 
No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

Waste Collection

Service Performance Indicators Results

Service/indicator/measure 2015 Material Variations
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Our Economy
Workforce Development
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will maximise the potential of the local workforce through 
education, training and employment opportunities

Improving Business Infrastructure
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will advocate for the provision of infrastructure and 
services that supports business growth

Investment Attraction
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will support local business retention and growth and 
attract new business and residential investment to the Shire

Tourism Development
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will increase the economic, social and cultural benefits to 
the Shire of a growing tourism sector

Achievements

•	 Following	strong	advocacy	relating	to	mobile	phone	
deficiencies across the region Shire federal funding 
was announced for eight new mobile base stations in 
Murrindindi to address existing communication black spots.

•	 Council	made	a	successful	bid	for	the	Rural	Council’s	Victoria	
Summit to be held in Marysville in 2016.  

•	 The	Alexandra to Eildon Trail Link Feasibility Study was 
completed during the year with Council resolving to seek 
funding to construct the section of trail linking Eildon to 
Thornton contingent on a complete design of the trail being 
completed in 2015/16.

Challenges

•	 Attracting	new	residents,	building	investor	confidence	and	
growing employment opportunities at a time of widespread 
fiscal restraint.

•	 Identifying	and	implementing	the	mechanisms	to	promote	
the shire and its attractions that provide the best value for 
money given Council’s limited resources.

•	 Continuing	the	momentum	to	promote	areas	affected	
by the 2009 bushfires following the  completion of the 
Marysville and Surrounds Tourism and Events funding 
program.

Looking forward 

•	 Continuing	to	advocate	and	support	the	provision	
of education and training opportunities within the 
Murrindindi Shire.

•	 Growing	the	rate	base	to	support	the	future	economic	
sustainability of the Shire.

•	 Investigating	the	creation	of	seed	funding	to	support	the	
establishment of new businesses in the Shire.

•	 Supporting	the	development	of	a	master	plan	for	the	
Alexandra Railway Precinct.

•	 Continuing	advocacy	to	the	State	Government	for	funding	
for	a	study	into	the	feasibility	of	a	Giant	Trees	Trail	within	
the Murrindindi and part of the Yarra Ranges Shires.
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3.1 Workforce Development -We will maximise the potential of the local workforce through 
education, training and employment opportunities

3.1.1 Advocate for and support initiatives to improve post-secondary education opportunities 
in the Shire, including development of the Murrindindi Training Institute

Work with MTI to 
establish a local 
employer and 
educator network 
to integrate local 
training provision 
with employment 
needs

Completed Good	outcomes	were	achieved	in	enhancing	post	secondary	education	and	
training options in the Shire.  Alexandra CEACA took on responsibility for the 
practical aspects of the Murrindindi Training Institute (MTI) which delivered the 
Outdoor Recreation courses at Certificate 4 and Diploma level. The new Murrindindi 
Employers Training (MET) group was established to focus on the strategic aspects 
of industry led training.  Alexandra CEACA developed, promoted and trialled a 
number of new courses in both aged care and hospitality.  The new Executive Officer 
of	the	Central	Ranges	Local	Learning	and	Employment	Network	was	introduced	to	
local stakeholders and provided background and context concerning the current 
challenges and opportunities relating to post secondary education in Murrindindi.  
Plans	were	initiated	that	will	see	greater	input	from	the	CRLLEN	in	facilitating	future	
initiatives.   

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Work as part of the 
Murrindindi Strategic 
Skills Training and 
Employment Network 
to implement the 
recommendations 
of the Murrindindi 
Training	Needs	
Analysis Report 2013

Progress 
delayed

Despite a number of good outcomes and very strong collaboration and networking 
enjoyed	through	the	Local	Strategic	Skills	Training	and	Employment	Network	
(LSSTEN),	some	of	the	initiatives	identified	for	action	were	delayed	due	to	uncertainty	
of	funding	and	a	reduction	in	scope	for	the	Central	Ranges	Local	Learning	and	
Employment Network.  A range of work experience opportunities were undertaken 
by local students including involvement with the houseboat sector, a very successful 
careers day for the health sector was held in Seymour and progress was made 
regarding the potential of introducing a school based apprenticeship model in 
health and aged care.

3.1.2 Support initiatives and activities of the Murrindindi Strategic Skills Training and 
Employment Network

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Work as part of the 
Murrindindi Strategic 
Skills Training and 
Employment Network 
to implement the 
recommendations 
of the Murrindindi 
Training	Needs	
Analysis Report 2013

Completed Following	some	uncertainty	regarding	funding	for	the	CRLLEN	going	forward,	strong	
advocacy	and	support	for	the	activities	of	the	CRLLEN	led	to	confirmation	from	the	
State	Government	of	a	4	year	commitment,	at	a	reduced	level.		A	new	Executive	
Officer	was	appointed	and	the	CRLLEN	Board	undertook	a	strategic	planning	session	
to	ascertain	key	priorities	for	the	next	4	years.		Plans	were	developed	with	the	LSSTEN	
and the Executive Officer for a review of progress on key items in the Murrindindi 
Training Needs Analysis with a view to targeting a small number of new priorities in 
the coming year.

3.1.3 Work closely with the Central Ranges Local Learning and Employment Network (CRLLEN) 
to improve local workforce development opportunities

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Participate in the Indi 
Electorate Mobile 
Blackspots Project

Completed Significant outcomes were achieved through involvement with the Indi electorate 
Telecommunications	Action	Group	(ITAG).		Following	an	exercise	to	map	existing	
infrastructure, a prioritisation process and strong advocacy relating to mobile phone 
deficiencies across the region, funding was announced for 8 new mobile base 
stations in the Murrindindi Shire. This will lead to significant improvements in mobile 
phone coverage across the shire.  

3.2 Improving Business Infrastructure –  We will advocate for the provision of infrastructure 
and services that supports business growth

3.2.1 Support the development and implementation of the Hume ICT (Digital) Strategy and the 
Hume NBN Business Readiness Plan

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Implement the 
business case for 
the potential lease 
of additional land 
to support further 
enhancement of 
facilities at the Yea 
Saleyards for Council’s 
consideration

Ongoing Negotiations with adjacent landholders to the saleyards have occurred throughout 
2014/15 in a bid to facilitate the purchase of additional land to assist in the 
consolidation and expansion of the Yea Saleyards. This will continue into 2015/16 as 
the land has not been sold to another party and dialogue remains ongoing with the 
current owners.

3.2.2 Support further growth and development of the Yea Sale Yards subject to the availability 
of grant and reserve funds

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

3.2.3 Facilitate opportunities to increase utilisation of available industrial land in the Shire

Facilitate 
opportunities to 
increase utilisation of 
available industrial 
land in the Shire

Progress 
Delayed

Completion of the Yea Structure Plan during the year has created new industrial 
development opportunities in the Yea Saleyards precinct.  Despite some delays 
relating to funding, the Eildon Structure Plan process was progressed in the last 
quarter of the year with consultants being appointed and initial inception meetings 
well underway.   The Eildon Structure Plan will consider future options for residential 
and industrial land in and around Eildon with a focus on the growing needs of the 
houseboat maintenance and building sector.  These Structure Plan outcomes add to 
existing industrial development opportunities in Alexandra and Narbethong.  

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Develop and 
implement the 
Murrindindi Business 
Investment Prospectus

Progress 
delayed

Significant progress was made in the development of the Murrindindi Business 
Investment Prospectus.  Decisions were made on the platforms to be used, social 
media campaigns to be developed and the imagery and other content to be 
included in the investor attraction tools under construction.  A range of other 
initiatives was completed in the process of developing and delivering the prospectus 
including two business forums, various pre development application meetings and  
the hosting of numerous investor group visits to the shire. Due to project resources 
being allocated to hosting a greater number of actual investor visits to the shire than 
anticipated, some aspects of the work plan were delayed and the project completion 
date was extended to December 2015.

3.3 Investment Attraction – We will support local business retention and growth and attract 
new business and residential investment to the Shire

3.3.1  Implement a business attraction and investment campaign

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

Investigate 
opportunities to 
attract investment in 
residential facilities 
for retiree and aged 
sectors

Completed The potential for investment into the aged care sector was investigated and was 
subsequently included in the opportunities list developed for the Murrindindi 
Business Investment Prospectus.  Considerations relating to the range of potential 
options to invest in this sector were informed by a forum including key local 
stakeholders,	the	State	Government	(Department	of	Health)	and	Council	officers	held	
at Alexandra District Health.  Some investor interest was canvassed relating to two 
locations within the shire with a degree of expectation developed that investment in 
this sector will occur in at least one of those two locations in the near future. 

3.3.2 Participate in a range of State Government sponsored initiatives that encourage people to 
Live, Work and Invest in rural and regional Victoria

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Promote 
opportunities to 
expand residential 
and business 
investment in and 
around the Shire’s 
major townships 
including associated 
Open Days

Completed Opportunities for expansion of residential and business investment in the shire’s 
main towns were promoted widely.  The availability of residential land was increased 
via the adoption of the Yea Structure Plan.		A	successful	2015	Regional	Victorian	Living	
Expo occurred in April 2015 with over 10,000 potential relocators being given access 
to the Murrindindi stand and a range of brochures and other information.  This was 
complemented with a regional stand that enabled conversations with local real 
estate agents and access to a display of local produce, food and wine.  The “Region 
on a Plate” presentations on the main stage at the Expo saw quality local producers 
showcase all that the region offers visitors and new residents. The brief created for 
delivery of the Eildon Structure Plan places a focus on potential residential growth in 
and around the township.

3.3.3 Identify and promote opportunities for growth in housing and business development in 
and around the Shire’s main townships

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

44 

MURRINDINDI SHIRE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015



Council Plan activities

Support the 
development of a 
Master Plan for the 
Alexandra Railway 
Precinct

Progress 
Delayed

Whilst	State	Government	funding	was	confirmed	for	the	Master	Plan,	the	
commencement of the project was initially delayed due to the need to resolve legal 
arrangements associated with the lease of the railway land with Victrack. The project 
finally commenced in the third quarter with the appointment of consultants to assist 
with	the	Master	Plan	development	and	the	formation	of	a	Project	Reference	Group	to	
ensure community involvement in the development of the Plan.  The project is now 
due for completion in February 2016. 

3.4 Tourism Development - We will increase the economic, social and cultural benefits to the 
Shire of a growing tourism sector

3.4.1 In partnership with GRVT actively encourage investment in, and support development of 
new tourism product, attractions and accommodation options in the Shire

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Complete a feasibility 
assessment of a 
trail link between 
Alexandra and Eildon

Completed The Alexandra to Eildon Trail Link Feasibility Study was completed during the year 
with Council resolving to support the allocation of funds from the Advancing 
Country Towns Project to complete a full design of the Alexandra to Eildon trail and to 
construct a short section of the Eildon to Thornton stage. Subject to the design being 
completed Council also resolved to seek funding for the construction of the section 
of trail linking Eildon to Thornton.   

3.4.2 Maintain strong relationships with government departments and agencies to promote 
enhanced tourism opportunities and infrastructure in the Shire such as the Giant Trees 
Trail and Toolangi Zip Line

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

3.4.3 Maintain strong relationships with government departments and agencies to promote 
enhanced tourism opportunities and infrastructure in the Shire such as the Giant Trees 
Trail and Toolangi Zip Line

Support Murrindindi 
Inc in enabling 
local business and 
tourism associations 
to engage with 
Government 
departments and 
agencies

Completed Support was provided to Murrindindi Incorporated (Murri Inc) to enable the 
organisation to function at a high level and to engage with local and state 
government agencies and key industry groups.  Some initiatives include the 
development of the Murri Inc Strategic Plan and Action Plan 2015 - 2017, invitations for 
involvement/representation at business forums and on steering committees such as 
the Murrindindi Business Investment Prospectus steering committee, and a permanent 
place on the Murrindindi Shire Council Economic Development Advisory Committee. 
A funding request to Regional Development Victoria, with Council as the auspice, 
was lodged. If successful, the funding will resource a range of planned Murri Inc 
activities to be delivered in the 2016 - 2018 period.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Council Plan activities

Work with key 
stakeholders to 
advocate for a 
feasibility study on 
the development of 
a major walking trail 
(Giant Trees Trail) 
linking our State and 
National parks

Completed Council	continued	to	advocate	to	the	State	Government	for	funding	for	a	study	
into	the	feasibility	of	a	Giant	Trees	Trail	within	the	Murrindindi	and	part	of	the	Yarra	
Ranges Shires.  

3.4.4 Support event managers in the establishment and delivery of new tourism events across 
the Shire

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

For the 2014-15 financial year there are no prescribed performance reporting indicators to be measured that are relevant 
to the “Our Economy” section of the Council Plan.
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Our Council
Leadership
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will deliver visible leadership and advocacy

Customer Service
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will deliver quality customer outcomes by continuing to 
find better ways of doing things

Financial Sustainability
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will administer sound financial management practices

Staff
Strategic Objective – What we will do
We will have engaged and professional staff.

Achievements

•	 Following	the	State	Government	election,	Council’s	
advocacy	efforts	to	the	new	State	Government	focused	
on looking at ways to encourage funding which will help 
boost the local economy and development within the 
Shire as well as continuing advocacy for further financial 
support.

•	 Council	undertook	substantial	consultation	with	the	
community in relation to prioritising options under 
consideration to help meet the funding shortfall arising 
from the gifting of new and expanded assets to Council 
following the 2009 fires.

•	 Council’s	Rating Strategy was adopted at the March 
2015 Council meeting following extensive community 
consultation. 

•	 Council’s	new	Enterprise Agreement was finalised and 
certified in 2014/15.

•	 Council	finalised	and	tested	a	new	Business Continuity Plan 
during 2014/15, to ensure that Council is best equipped to 
deal with any emergency business interruptions that might 
eventuate so that critical Council services can continue to 
be provided.

•	 Six	officers	participated	in	the	Local	Government	
Management	Australia	(LGMA)	Challenge.	The	team	won	
the Victorian state final and was invited to present their 
pre-challenge task to the national congress in Darwin as 
one of the top three teams from across Australia and New 
Zealand.

Challenges

•	 Continued	development	of	systems,	processes	and	policies	
to assist in compliance with procurement best practice 
with the aim of maximizing value for money for residents 
and ratepayers.

•	 Continuing	to	work	with	the	community	to	improves	its	
satisfaction with Council operations, advocacy and overall 
performance.

•	 Preparing	Council’s	operations	for	the	impact	of	the	
State	Government’s	proposed	rate	capping	and	variation	
framework which is expected to come into operation as 
of 1 July 2016. The impact of this will require extensive 
strategic analysis of Council’s service delivery and asset 
management responsibilities and will also necessitate 
extensive community consultation to prepare for this 
change in legislation.

Looking forward 

•	 Progressing	development	of	Council’s	customer	request	
tracking processes and establishing indicators of Council’s 
responsiveness.

•	 Outlining	to	the	community	how	Council	will	implement	its	
strategy to give greater responsibility to communities for 
managing infrastructure.

•	 Incorporating	the	Council’s	strategies	for	asset	renewal	and	
greater community stewardship of asset management into 
Council’s	Longer	Term	Financial	Planning.

•	 Identifying	opportunities	to	incorporate	cadetships,	
traineeships and apprenticeships into the workforce.
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4.1 Leadership- We will demonstrate visible leadership and advocacy

4.1.1  Involve community leaders in regular advocacy to State and Federal Governments on 
local needs and issues & 4.1.4 Communicate key Council decisions and strategies to the 
community in a variety of ways

Advocate on behalf of 
the community on a 
minimum of 10 issues

Completed Council advocated on a range of issues during the year. Early in the year Council 
increased	substantially	its	advocacy	efforts	with	the	former	State	Government	in	
seeking funding assistance to help with the shortfall arising from the gifting of new 
and expanded assets following the 2009 bushfires.  Following the State election 
Council’s advocacy efforts focused on looking at ways to encourage funding which 
will help boost the local economy and development within the Shire as well as 
continuing advocacy for further financial support.  This has involved meetings with 
local members of parliament, several former and new State Ministers and Shadow 
Ministers to press Council’s needs in areas such as planning scheme amendments, 
local industry-based training, funding for structure plans, financial support for 
Council and key industry sectors and various tourism and economic development 
projects.  Council also worked to attract the kinds of activities which will boost 
spending in the region; to this end Council made a successful bid for the RCV Summit 
to be held in Marysville in 2016. 

During the year Council successfully advocated via the Federal Member for Indi, 
Cathy	McGowan	and	the	Indi	Telecommunications	Action	Group	to	the	Federal	
Government	regarding	Murrindindi	Shire’s	priorities	on	the	Mobile	Black	Spots	
Program.	The	Federal	Government	announced	in	June	that	eight	new	base	stations	
would be constructed by Telstra across the Shire over the next 3 years, with a 
significant improvement for mobile phone coverage anticipated.  

Council worked with the MAV in support of its advocacy efforts to secure adequate 
funding for both Aged and Disability Services and Early Childhood Services. Council 
advocated to Regional Development Victoria regarding accessing funding to support 
the implementation of the Murrindindi Inc. Strategic Plan and Action Plan. Council has 
contributed	to	submissions	to	the	Federal	Government	advocating	for	the	retention	
of key elements of the Victorian Home and Community Care system in the transition 
from	State	to	Federal	Government	management.		In	June,	Council	hosted	and	
participated in the Rural and Regional Planning conference held in Marysville.  

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities
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Council Plan activities
4.1.2 Actively develop and implement a long term vision for the Shire of Murrindindi

Complete the 
Murrindindi 2030 
Vision

Develop a long 
term plan for the 
implementation of 
the Murrindindi 2030 
Vision

Completed

Completed

Council adopted the Murrindindi 2030 Vision at its October 2014 Ordinary Council 
meeting and the Implementation Statement at its May 2015 Ordinary meeting. 
Parallel with the development of the Draft Murrindindi 2030 Vision work commenced 
on the development of a long term implementation plan. The staff and Councillor 
working groups have already identified potential actions to go into the long term 
implementation plan which will be completed once the Murrindindi 2030 Vision is 
finalised.

The Implementation Statement for Murrindindi Vision 2030 was adopted by Council 
at its May 2015 Ordinary Meeting.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

4.1.3 Building community relationships and trust through community forums and engagement

Building community 
relationships and 
trust through 
community forums 
and engagement

Completed Several community engagement forums were held during the year providing the 
opportunity for community input into Council’s decisions and activities. Council 
undertook a substantial consultation with the community in relation to prioritising 
options under consideration to help meet the funding shortfall arising from the 
gifting of new and expanded assets to Council following the 2009 fires.  Several 
forums were held to advise the community and seek input in relation to a variety 
of infrastructure projects including the Yarck Streetscape Project, the replacement of 
the	Ghin	Ghin	bridge,	the Taggerty Community Project and the Taylor Bay waste and 
recycling compound.  Other projects for which community forums were held during 
the year included the development of a Murrindindi Gaming Policy, the Kinglake 
Ranges, Toolangi and Flowerdale Streetscape Master Plan, the development of the 
Council’s new Rating Strategy, and the draft Lake Eildon Recreational Boating Facilities 
Infrastructure Improvement Plan.   

Council	also	ran	a	Grants	Forum	in	Yea	for	community	information	and	capacity	
building in conjunction with key community organisations across the Shire.  Council 
hosted an Aged Care Forum for stakeholders, at Alexandra District Health to share 
information and collaborate across the sector and to discuss opportunities for 
growth and investment.  As part of the Watts Working Better Project Council ran 
business and community forums relating to energy efficiency. 

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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4.2 Customer Service – We will deliver quality customer outcomes by implementing better 
ways of doing things

4.2.1 Build on our customer service and communications with the community

Establish an Electronic 
Customer Service 
Request System

Completed A review of Council’s customer service operations was concluded during the year 
which has highlighted a number of areas for improvement in handling customer 
needs and requirements which will be implemented progressively over the next 
two years. Council appointed and has trained a new Customer Service Trainee at its 
Alexandra Office.  

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

4.2.2 Continue to improve our processes to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
organisation

Implement 
business process 
improvements related 
to: Governance, 
Procurement 
Roadmap, Electronic 
Document 
Management System, 
Finance Systems, 
Murrindindi Services 
Review

Completed Council adopted a new framework for the review and development of policies during 
the year. This involved a review of the status of all Council policies and a program to 
ensure the ongoing relevance and alignment with the new policy framework.

A full review of Council’s Procurement Policy was adopted by Council in December 
2014. Further training for Council officers highlighting the new compliance 
requirements has occurred for all delegated officers in 2014/15.

Council’s new electronic document management system has now been rolled out 
across 100% of the organisation. Stage 2 of the project commenced which focuses 
on eliminating paper-based processes and removing obsolete computer storage 
drives and physical archives of Council records.  This stage will extend into 2015/16.

Council participated in a trial of the new Performance Reporting Framework for the 
first	quarter	of	2014/15	facilitated	by	Local	Government	Victoria.		Council	received	
a successful report highlighting Council’s ability to comply with the new framework 
for the 2014/15 financial year. The implementation of this framework has been 
incorporated into Council’s financial year end processes and is represented in this 
Annual Report.

Council officers have finalised a new Business Continuity Plan during 2014/15, 
to ensure that Council is best equipped to deal with any emergency business 
interruptions that might eventuate so that critical Council services can continue to 
be provided. This plan was tested in May 2015 with the results showing that Council 
is well placed should it ever be required to put this plan into action. Further testing 
will be undertaken in 2015/16 and beyond to ensure that the Plan remains current 
and that officers are trained appropriately.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities
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4.3 Financial Sustainability – We will administer sound financial management practices

4.3.1 Growing our rate base through diligent planning

Develop and 
coordinate a master 
plan for growing the 
rates base

Progress 
delayed

Work on this project has not progressed substantially this year and will need to 
be carried forward into 2015/16. Council has, however, recently restructured a 
number of positions internally to ensure a more streamlined approach to facilitating 
economic development and growth in the Shire and to make the Council more 
accessible to those who want to undertake development. 

The newly created position of Manager Development will be focused on better 
aligning systems and processes to ensure growth opportunities for the rate base 
within the Shire are maximised.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

4.3.2 Provide value money through the delivery of long term financial plans

Provide value money 
through the delivery 
of long term financial 
plans

Completed Council’s Draft Annual Budget 2015/16 and the year three review of its Strategic 
Resource Plan 2013-2017 were adopted by Council in May 2015. These documents, 
including Council’s Long Term Financial Plan and Capital Improvement Plan, will assist 
Council in providing financially sustainable service delivery for the 2015/16 financial 
year, as well as planning for the longer term.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

4.3.3 Practising responsible grants management and how we access our grants

Increase capacity to 
attract grants

Completed Executive and senior management have met with Regional Development Victoria 
representatives	to	discuss	the	State	Government	priorities	and	assessment	criteria.	
Officers	attended	the	Federal	Government’s	National	Stronger	Regions	Fund	(NSRF)	
information session to ensure greater awareness of Federal priorities.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

4.3.4  Promoting an equitable rating strategy for all ratepayers

Complete and 
implement the review 
of the Rating Strategy

Completed Council’s Rating Strategy was adopted at the March 2015 Ordinary Meeting of 
Council following extensive community consultation and consideration of legislative 
requirements and government guidelines. The new differential rating categories 
outlined in the strategy took effect from 1 July 2015.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities
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4.4 Staff – We will have engaged and professional staff

4.4.1 Ensure a healthy and safe workplace for all staff

Ensure a healthy and 
safe workplace for all 
staff

Completed Council’s policy framework for the year continued the drive for improvement with 
review of four organisational policies in Health and Wellbeing, Consumption of Alcohol 
and Drugs, Working in UV/Extreme Heat, Occupational Health and Safety.

 In addition the Council’s Business Continuity Plan was developed and approved. A 
desk top test was conducted in the final quarter demonstrating Council’s improved 
capacity to respond in the event of a business interruption.  

Council’s new Enterprise Agreement was also finalised and certified during the year.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

4.4.2 Provide staff training and professional development opportunities

Develop and 
implement a  
training register

Provide staff training 
and professional 
development 
opportunities

Completed

Completed

A centralised training register was established to better capture and record all 
training undertaken by staff. 

The provision and coordination of staff training and professional development 
opportunities continued to improve in this financial year. A training register 
was established which has enabled better tracking and reporting of all relevant 
development opportunities.

The North East Regional Development Scheme (NERDS) partnership between 
Councils in has strengthened during the year resulting in council utilising and 
accessing a range of cost effective and relevant programs, both on-line and face to 
face.

A highlight of Council’s commitment to leadership development was the 
participation	of	a	Council	team	in	the	Local	Government	Management	Australia	
(LGMA)	Challenge.	The	team	won	the	Victorian	final	(over	27	other	teams)	and	
performed credibly in the Australasian finals.

The year saw 793 staff participate in 79 different training events totalling the 
equivalent of 453 training days; and 294 staff enrol in 8 different online learning 
programs.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes

Council Plan activities

4.4.3 Provide workforce development and succession planning opportunities

Provide workforce 
development and 
succession planning 
opportunities

Progress 
Delayed

The rotation program was deferred and will be incorporated into the review of 
customer service delivery during 2015/16.

Activities Status Comment on progress and outcomes
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Transparency

Council decisions made at meetings closed to the public
[Number of Council resolutions made at ordinary or 
special meetings of Council, or at meetings of a special 
committee consisting only of Councillors, closed to 
the public / Number of Council resolutions made at 
ordinary or special meetings of Council or at meetings 
of a special committee consisting only of Councillors ] 
x100

Consultation and engagement

Satisfaction with community consultation and 
engagement
Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how 
Council has performed on community consultation and 
engagement 

Attendance

Councillor attendance at council meetings
[The sum of the number of Councillors who attended 
each ordinary and special Council meeting / (Number 
of ordinary and special Council meetings) × (Number of 
Councillors elected at the last Council general election)] 
x100

Service cost

Cost of governance
[Direct cost of the governance service / Number of 
Councillors elected at the last Council general election]

Satisfaction 

Satisfaction with council decisions
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how 
council has performed in making decisions in the 
interest of the community]

8.96%

 

 

50.00

 

 

92.86%

 

 

$20,421.43

 

 
47.00

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 

 

No material variations for 2014/15. Trend analysis to be 
provided from 2015/16 onwards.

 
 

This result is below the small rural Councils average 
for 2014/15 and may reflect a response to the 
difficult decisions made by Council with regard to its 
infrastructure renewal challenges.

Governance

Service Performance Indicators Results

Service/indicator/measure 2015 Material Variations

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed performance indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.

Council Plan activities
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Corporate Development – Our Organisation
WORKFORCE PROFILE 
A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff categorised by employment classification and gender is set out 
below.
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Corporate Development - Our Organisation  

 

WORKFORCE PROFILE  

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff categorized by employment 
classification and gender is set out below. 

 

 

Employment 
Classification 

Female FTE Male FTE Total FTE

Band 1 17.0 2.1 19.1
Band 2 2.3 10.6 12.9
Band 3 0.4 15.1 15.5
Band 4 14.6 10.4 25.0
Band 5 15.0 6.5 21.5
Band 6 8.4 2.5 10.9
Band 7 7.2 4.1 11.3
Band 8 3.0 5.5 8.5
Band not applicable 6.1 9.5 15.6
Total 74.0 66.2 140.2
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A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff categorised by organisational structure, employment type and 
gender is set out below.

Employment Bus Comm Comms,  Devt  &  Eco Dev Exec HR & Infra Infra Total 
Type  / Gender Serv Serv Cust & Enviro FTE FTE Risk Assets Ops FTE
 FTE FTE Library  FTE   FTE FTE FTE
   FTE

Permanent FT - F 5.0 4.0 3.0 1.2 0.0 2.0 1.0 1.8 1.8 19.8

Permanent FT - M 4.0 0.0 0.0 6.8 1.0 1.0 0.0 5.5 35.8 54.1

Permanent PT - F 6.2 25.7 6.2 4.3 2.0 1.0 1.8 2.3 2.8 52.3

Permanent PT - M 2.7 4.3 1.6 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 1.8 11.6

Casual - F 0.0 1.0 0.7 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9

Casual - M 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.5

Total 17.9 35 11.6 13.2 3.0 4.0 2.8 10.1 42.6 140.2

 Employment  Female Male Total
 Classification FTE FTE FTE

Band 1 17.0 2.1 19.1

Band 2 2.3 10.6 12.9

Band 3 0.4 15.1 15.5

Band 4 14.6 10.4 25.0

Band 5 15.0 6.5 21.5

Band 6 8.4 2.5 10.9

Band 7 7.2 4.1 11.3

Band 8 3.0 5.5 8.5

Band not applicable 6.1 9.5 15.6

Total  74.0 66.2 140.2
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A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff categorized by organizational 
structure, employment type and gender is set out below. 

Employment 
Type / 
Gender 

Bus 
Serv 
FTE 

Comm 
Serv 
FTE 

Comms, 
Cust & 
Library 

FTE 

Devt  
& 

Enviro 
FTE 

Eco 
Dev 
FTE 

Exec 
FTE 

HR & 
Risk 
FTE 

Infra 
Assets 

FTE 

Infra 
Ops 
FTE 

Total 
FTE 

Permanent 
FT - F 

5.0 4.0 3.0 1.2 0.0 2.0 1.0 1.8 1.8 19.8

Permanent 
FT - M 

4.0 0.0 0.0 6.8 1.0 1.0 0.0 5.5 35.8 54.1

Permanent 
PT - F 

6.2 25.7 6.2 4.3 2.0 1.0 1.8 2.3 2.8 52.3

Permanent 
PT - M 

2.7 4.3 1.6 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 1.8 11.6

Casual - F 0.0 1.0 0.7 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9
Casual - M 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.5
Total 17.9 35 11.6 13.2 3.0 4.0 2.8 10.1 42.6 140.2
 

 

 

 

Health and safety of our people 
Our staff are our most valuable asset because they are essential to the delivery of our services 
and our achievements.  

Health and Wellbeing 
Council updated the following policies in relation to staff health and well-being; Health and 
Wellbeing, Occupational Health and Safety, and Ultra-Violet Radiation & Working in Seasonal 
Heat. 
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Corporate Development – Our Organisation
Health and safety of our people

Our staff are our most valuable asset because they are 
essential to the delivery of our services and our achievements. 

Health and wellbeing

Council updated the following policies in relation to staff 
health and well-being; Health and Wellbeing, Occupational 
Health and Safety, and Ultra-Violet Radiation & Working in 
Seasonal Heat.

Council continued to run a variety of Health and Wellbeing 
programs covering topics relating to physical and mental 
health from an organisational and personal perspective.  These 
included encouraging exercise during breaks with “Walk the 
Block”, participation in a corporate triathlon, driver safety 
awareness training, respectful relationships seminars, manual 
handling workshops, First Aid training and CPR updates. 
Other activities included the influenza immunisation program 
offered to all staff and regular healthy eating updates in 
newsletters. An employee run social club also supports healthy 
relationships at work.

Council	remains	a	participant	in	the	Local	Government	
Employees Health Plan Scheme which enables Council staff to 
join a private health fund at competitive rates.

Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
Council is committed to providing a safe and healthy work 
environment and ensuring the health, safety and wellbeing of 
all employees.

Council operates a Risk and Safety Committee made up of 
four Health and Safety Representatives and four Management 
Representatives who support and represent each workgroup 
across the organisation as well four staff with professional 
responsibilities in aspects of risk management.  The 
Committee aims to ensure that all identified hazards and risks 
are acknowledged, communicated and resolved promptly.

The Emergency Management teams underwent training, 
evacuation management plans were updated, zone wardens 
were re-trained, and drills were run on a regular basis.

The time lost due to injury was low across the year, and was 
lower than for several reporting years. 

Risk management

Council also undertook a range of activities to ensure that 
Council’s exposure to risk is anticipated and managed 
appropriately. These included undergoing a range of audits 
and inspections, including an internal audit of Council’s risk 
management framework. Council is implementing actions 
from these.

Council also adopted a new Business Continuity Plan to 
ensure Council is prepared in the event of any major business 
interruption. 

Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA)

In July 2014, an Enterprise Bargaining Committee comprising 
management representatives, nominated workplace delegates 
and union industrial officers was established to negotiate a 
new Enterprise Agreement for Council employees. As a result, 
a new Enterprise Agreement was successfully negotiated and 
approved by Fair Work Australia, with an operative date of 3 
June 2015 for a period until 22 February 2018.
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Training and development

Council continued as an active participant in a North East 
Regional Development Scheme (NERDS) involving 10 Councils, 
which focuses on reducing costs and travelling time for the 
associated rural councils by working collaboratively to run 
local and online training.

The	online	learning	program	‘Learning	Seat’	continues	to	assist	
Council to access professional development opportunities and 
to address training needs.

In 2014-15 we again increased participation and training 
delivery. Over the whole year 444 staff training days were 
delivered. The delivery of onsite training included (in addition 
to those listed under Health and Wellbeing and OH&S):

•	 Customer	Service	
•	 High	Performance	Leadership	coaching	
•	 Fresh	Green	Clean	Workshop
•	 Personal	Support/Professional	Development
•	 Innovation	as	Leadership	in	Local	Government
•	 MAV	Insurance	&	Risk
•	 Local	Issues,	Collective	Solutions
•	 Social	Media	for	Emergency	Situations
•	 Engaging	Citizens
•	 Procurement	and	RFQ’s/Tender	Search
•	 Productivity	&	Email/Outlook	Workshop
•	 Environmental	Management	in	Infrastructure	training
•	 Electronic	Records	Management	Training	(TRIM)
•	 Defibrillator	Training
•	 MAV	Step	Workforce	Development	Workshop	
•	 Changing	Gears	Mature	Age	workshop

Training opportunities were also made available offsite and 
through externally arranged workshops including:

•	 Biodiversity	Assessment
•	 Land	Law,	Roads,	Streets,	Lanes
•	 Good	Decision	Making
•	 Learning	&	Managing	Change	in	Public	Sector
•	 Creating	Accessible	Documents
•		 Environmental	Land	Law
•	 National	Construction	Code
•	 Local	Government	Management	Association	Challenge
•	 Emerging	leaders	workshop
•	 Working	in	Local	Government
•	 Annual	Report	Preparation	and	the	Performance	Reporting	

Framework

Council	also	continued	an	informal	program	of	‘Learning	
Lunchtimes’	where	staff	volunteer	and	share	their	knowledge	
on topics as diverse as using information management 
systems, environmental responsibilities, preventing sexual 
harassment and social media skills. 

Staff Satisfaction Survey 

The Staff Satisfaction Survey was conducted in October 2013. 
The results showed a small increase in satisfaction levels from 
a low base following a survey conducted in 2011, which at 
the time reflected uncertainty within the organisation with 
respect to the outcomes of the Services Review underway at 
that time.   The 2013 survey indicated improved results around 
staff engagement, having clear direction, understanding the 
vision, and in areas of planning and leadership. An updated 
Staff Satisfaction Survey is scheduled to be conducted in the 
2015-16 financial year to measure how Council has continued 
to progress its staff satisfaction objectives.

Awards/recognitions

Activities to recognise staff excellence and effort included:

•	 Regular	peer-nominated	Organisational	Development	
recognition awards (OD Fellow award) for employees, and  

•	 Delivery	of	the	annual	awards	scheme	to	recognise	
services delivered in line with organisational values. The 
presentation was held at the staff Christmas party and 
awards were presented to staff by the Mayor and Chief 
Executive Officer.
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Equal employment opportunity

Murrindindi Shire Council is committed to the principles of 
equal opportunity and anti-discrimination in employment and 
the delivery of council services to the community.  

Council believes that its employees are entitled to be treated 
on the basis of their true abilities and merit, and to work in an 
environment which is free of discrimination and harassment. 

Council has an Equal Employment Opportunity Policy and 
supporting procedures which apply to council employees and 
contractors.  Refresher training was conducted with a number 
of staff, and there has been a pleasing improvement in gender 
balance in the outdoor staff teams.

The Access and Inclusion Committee has operated well 
with great representation from Council and key partners 
in the community working to improve access to council 
services and access to employment. Some of the initiatives 
in access and EEO included a refresher training in EEO for all 
staff, coordinating a Helping Hands Workshop where staff, 
Councilors and community members built prosthetic hands 
and learnt about life with a disability, engaging a disabled staff 
member through an access grant, and employing a trainee to 
support youth access to employment. 

Staff Code of Conduct 

The Murrindindi Shire Council Code of Conduct remains a core 
document about the way in which we behave in our working 
relationships with each other and with the wider community.

The Code of Conduct establishes a shared understanding 
of how we can work well together to create an enjoyable, 
satisfying and productive workplace. 

For the community our Code of Conduct establishes our 
commitment to carry out our duties and deliver our services 
responsively, impartially, professionally and with the highest 
level of integrity. 

All new staff are made aware of their obligations under the 
code of conduct as part of their induction. In addition fraud 
prevention awareness refresher was issued on line to all staff. 

Internal communications

Council’s intranet, ‘Murri’, and its Daily Update front page have 
continued to develop as integral communication tools for our 
organisation.  

These tools are a key component in the induction of new 
staff and provide a single focal point for access to a range of 
information. 

The staff newsletter The Murricle is published fortnightly. Staff 
members are encouraged to contribute to the newsletter and 
articles can be on professional, informative or social topics.

A number of departments also produce service specific 
newsletters for their staff or customers.  

•	 Dindi Chat for staff, volunteers and clients of the aged and 
disability services

•	 YAK for home care staff

•	 Home Based Child Care News for Family Day Care and In 
Home Child Care families and carers

Other forms of internal communication include general staff 
meetings, departmental meetings and depot meetings. As 
a result of a six month leadership program, managers have 
increased one on one and regular team meetings to assist 
in effective communication and engagement across the 
organisation.
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Corporate Development – Our Council
Integrated Planning Framework

Murrindindi Shire Council has developed a corporate planning 
framework which identifies the relationship between 
the Council Plan, its various strategies and the individual 
departmental business plans and staff performance plans

Figure	2:	Integrated	Planning	Framework

The planning framework provides for the Council Plan 
Strategic Objectives to be linked to the implementation of 
adopted strategies that are funded and resourced through the 
Annual Budget.

The Council then measures and monitors its performance and 
reports both internally and to its community as required.

Council receives formal reports on a quarterly basis detailing 
progress against the Council Plan, the Annual Budget and the 
Capital Works Program.

The role of local government 

Local	Government	is	governed	by	Councillors	who	are	
democratically elected by the voters of the local communities. 
As such it is the ‘grass roots’ level of government.

Section 3D of the Local Government Act 1989 states that the 
role of a council includes:

•	 Acting	as	a	representative	government	by	taking	into	
account the diverse needs of the local community in 
decision making.

•	 Providing	leadership	by	establishing	strategic	objectives	and	
monitoring their achievement.

•	 Maintaining	the	viability	of	the	Council	by	ensuring	that	
resources are managed in a responsible and accountable 
manner.

•	 AQdvocating	the	interests	of	the	local	community	to	other	
communities and governments.

•	 Acting	as	a	responsible	partner	in	government	by	taking		
into account the needs of other communities.

•	 Fostering	community	cohesion	and	encouraging	active	
participation in civic life.

Councillor Code of Conduct

All Councils in Victoria are required by the Local Government 
Act 1989 (s76C) to develop and regularly review a Councillor 
Code of Conduct.

A Councillor Code of Conduct was adopted by Murrindindi Shire 
Councillors on 25 September 2013. 

The Councillor Code of Conduct sets out the standards of 
behaviour and disclosure expected of Councillors, and 
identifies a process for resolving complaints. 
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Councillor support and remuneration

Section 74 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides for 
the	Governor	in	Council	to	set	allowances	for	the	Mayor	
and Councillors.  Councils are categorised according to their 
size and revenue base and an allowance range payable to 
Councillors is set for each category. Murrindindi Shire Council 
is a level one council.

For 2014-2015 the allowance paid to the Mayor of Murrindindi 
Shire Council was $56,402 plus an executive standard vehicle, 
and an amount equivalent to 9.5% superannuation. 

The allowance paid to the Councillors was $18,878 and an 
amount equivalent to 9.5% superannuation for the 2014-15 
year.

All Councillors are provided with an I-Pad and mobile phone to 
assist them in fulfilling their duties as Councillor. 

For further detail regarding allowances and expense 
entitlements please refer to the Councillor Reimbursement 
Policy adopted on 22 January 2014.

Council elections

All seven current Murrindindi Councillors were elected on 27 
October 2012 for a four-year term.

Council’s next general election will be held on 27 October 
2016.

Crs Ruhr and Magner both resigned from Council in late in 
the 2014-15 year due to conflicting work commitments. By-
elections to fill these positions were scheduled for 29 August 
2015.

Each year the seven Councillors elect the Mayor and Deputy 
Mayor.

Council electoral structure 

The Shire of Murrindindi is divided into seven single councillor 
wards.  Ward boundaries are aligned to ensure an even spread 
of voters in each ward. 
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 Ordinary Special
 Council Meetings  Meetings

 Eligible to   Eligible to
 Attend Attended Attend Attended

Cr M Rae, Mayor 12 12 8 8

Cr J Walsh 12 11 8 7

Cr C Challen  12 12 8 8

Cr J Kennedy  12 12 8 7

Cr B Magner 12 11 8 8

Cr A Derwent 12 12 8 7

Cr C Ruhr 12 9 8 6

Council meetings 

Council decisions are made by resolution of Council either at 
Ordinary Council Meetings or at Special Council Meetings.  

Ordinary Meetings of Council are held on the fourth 
Wednesday of the month.

Council meetings are held in the Alexandra Council Chamber 
except for four meetings annually which are held in locations 
across the Shire.  A schedule of council meetings is available 
at any Council office or on our web site.  Community members 
are encouraged to attend and participate in Council meetings. 

Councillors generally also meet on the first three Wednesdays 
of each month for briefing sessions.  Briefing sessions give 
Councillors the opportunity to hear presentations by officers 
on upcoming items and to seek clarification on these and 
other issues that may appear on the agenda at future Council 
meetings.    

A ‘Public Participation’ session is held at the beginning of each 
Council meeting to allow members of the public to address 
Council or have a question answered. 

Agendas for Council meetings are made available no less than 
48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting from a Council office 
or on our website. 

Additional Special Meetings of Council may be called to 
consider specific issues.  As well as the formal notice we make 
every effort to publicise these meetings through local media 
and on Council’s website.  

Council meetings are conducted in accordance with the 
procedures as detailed in Murrindindi Shire Council’s 
Governance Local Law 2, 2014 adopted by Council on 25 June 
2014.

A meeting is held annually to elect the Mayor and Deputy 
Mayor, set allowances for the Mayor and Councillors, and 
nominate Council’s representatives for a range of committees. 
This meeting was held on 29 October 2014.   

Councillor  Portfolio 

Cr Margaret Rae   The Mayor does not hold a portfolio

Cr	John	Walsh	 Land	Use	Planning	

Cr Christine Challen  Economic Development 

Cr John Kennedy  Community Services 

Cr Bernie Magner Corporate and Customer Services 

Cr Andrew Derwent  Natural Environment and Climate Change

Cr Cris Ruhr Infrastructure and Waste

Special Committees of Council 

In accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 Council 
may establish Special Committees with delegated powers 
to inform and act on behalf of Council.  Murrindindi Shire 
Council has 15 Section 86 Committees of Management. 

Portfolios

Each Councillor, with the exception of the Mayor, is 
responsible for a specific ‘portfolio’ which focuses on a 
functional area of Council.

This allows each Councillor to maintain a close relationship 
with staff managing issues associated with their portfolio, 
and to report to Council meetings on points of interest that 
fall under that portfolio.

Local Laws 

Council’s	Local	Laws	are:
•	 Governance Local Law 2, 2014
•	 Community	Local	Law	2012

Local	Laws	are	available	for	viewing	at	all	Council	offices	and	
online at www.murrindindi.vic.gov.au

Council conducted a review of its Governance Local Law in 
2014 and on 25 June 2014 adopted Governance Local Law 2, 
2014.
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Policy and strategy reviews

POLICIES

New Policies

There were four new policies adopted during the year.

Social Media Policy

As part of Council’s rollout of social media, a policy has been 
prepared for Council’s consideration that guides Council’s 
staff and Councillors on the appropriate use of social media 
applications.

Borrowings Policy

Council’s Audit Advisory Committee has requested a specific 
policy to address this matter to ensure Council’s borrowings 
are appropriately managed.

Information Management Policy 

The purpose of this policy is to provide a framework for 
staff with respect to the corporate direction and practices 
that ensures a complete and accurate record of corporate 
information is maintained.

Policy Development & Management Policy 

This policy provides guidance to Council staff in the 
preparation, implementation, approval and review process for 
Council, Organisational, Divisional and Departmental policies.

POLICY REVIEWS

There were seven policies reviewed during the year.

Fraud	Prevention	and	Control

As fraud constitutes a significant risk to any organisation it 
is appropriate that Council establishes a culture of ethical 
conduct and ensures that there are relevant measures in place 
for the prevention, detection and control of fraud.

Procurement Policy 

Provides guidance to Council to allow consistency and control 
over procurement activities; demonstrate accountability to 
ratepayers, and guidance on ethical behaviour in public sector 
purchasing.

Arts and Culture Policy 

The policy aims to provide Council with a framework to enable 
and support arts and cultural activities and guidance in 
relation to decision making, and determining directions that 
are appropriate in meeting the creative and cultural needs of 
Murrindindi Shire residents.

Councillor Portfolio Policy

This Policy articulates the objectives of creating the roles of a 
Portfolio Councillor as well as the roles and responsibilities of 
both Portfolio Councillors and the administration.

Community Grants Policy

The Community Grants Policy guides Council in determining 
appropriate	activities	to	fund	through	the	Community	Grants	
Program.

Consumption of Alcohol & Drugs Policy 

The purpose of this policy is to define Council’s commitment 
to providing employees with a safe and healthy working 
environment by taking all reasonable steps to mitigate 
potential risks associated with the use of alcohol and drugs in 
the workplace.

Ultraviolet Radiation & Working in Seasonal Heat Policy 

This policy reinforces Council’s obligation to provide a safe and 
healthy working environment with adequate protection from 
the hazards that workers may be subject to when working in 
an outdoor environment.  This includes minimising exposure 
to ultraviolet radiation and extreme heat.

STRATEGY

During 2014-2015 Council adopted seven strategies.

Waste & Resource Recovery Strategy Plan adopted 23 July 2014;
Rural Roadside Management Plan adopted 27 August 2014;
Municipal Emergency Management Plan adopted 22 October 
2014;
Murrindindi 2030 Vision adopted 22 October 2014;
Yea Structure Plan adopted 26 November 2014;
Rating Strategy adopted 25 March 2015; and
Murrindindi Shire Council Advocacy Plan adopted 25 March 
2015. 
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AuditingAudit Advisory Committee

The Audit Advisory Committee is an independent advisory 
committee to Council. The primary objective of the Audit 
Advisory Committee is to assist Council in the effective 
conduct of its responsibilities for internal and external 
financial reporting, management of risk, maintaining a reliable 
system of internal controls and facilitating the organisation’s 
ethical development. It also serves as an effective conduit 
for communications between the external auditor, internal 
auditor, management and Council.

The Internal Audit Advisory Committee currently comprises 
the following members:

 Ian McKaskill   (Chair)
 Robert Richards
 Michele Sheward
 Cr Margaret Rae (non-voting)
 Cr Andrew Derwent
 Cr John Kennedy

The Chief Executive Officer and a representative of the 
Internal Auditor are also required to attend meetings in a 
non-voting capacity. A representative of the External Auditor 
is also required to attend where either the year-end financial 
statements or external audit reports are to be considered.

The Audit Committee met on four occasions during the 2014-
2015 financial year, providing invaluable advice to Council on 
a number of important issues including reviews of Contract 
Management Framework, Payroll and Purchasing systems. 

Recommendations from the audit program are prioritised 
and addressed as opportunities for improvement across the 
organisation.

Internal Audits 

Murrindindi Shire Council’s internal audit function was 
contracted	to	HLB	Mann	Judd	from	1	December	2010	to	
31 December 2014. During the 2014-15 financial year, a 
competitive tender was undertaken for the provision of 
internal audit services which resulted in Crowe Horwath being 
appointed as Council’s new internal auditors from 1 January 
2015 for a term of 4 years.

During 2014-15 Council’s Internal Auditors conducted the 
following components of the audit program: 

•	 Review	of	Risk	Management	Framework	–	presented	
September 2014

•	 Review	of	IT	Governance	–	presented	December	2014

•	 Review	of	Asset	Management	–	presented	December	2014

•	 Review	of	Risk	Management	&	Governance	–	presented	May	
2015

External Audits

Council’s external auditor is currently Johnsons MME, which 
assumed this role for the 2014-15 financial year, taking over 
from	the	Victorian	Auditor	General’s	Office.		The	main	audit	is	
conducted in August with interim audits conducted during 
the year. 

Public Liability and Property Audits

Council achieved a grading of 72% in 2014-15 for the JMAPP 
Property Risk Audit, an improvement from 66% from the 
previously conducted audit. 

Civic	Mutual	Plus,	now	known	as	MAV	Insurance,	Liability	
Mutual Insurance, conducted the Public and Professional 
Liability	audit.

Privacy 

Council is committed to the responsible collection, handling 
and protection of the personal privacy of residents, ratepayers 
and the community as a whole. Council has policies in place 
to ensure adherence with the Privacy and Data Protection Act 
2014 and will only collect, use or disclose information where it 
is necessary to perform Council functions or where required by 
law. Murrindindi Shire Council will take all reasonable steps to 
keep any information held about individuals secure. 
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2014-15 Disclosures

Protected Disclosures Report
Topic 2014-2015 

Number of disclosures made Nil

Disclosures referred to Ombudsman for determination Nil

Disclosures referred by Ombudsman Nil

Disclosures referred to Ombudsman to investigate Nil

Investigations taken over by the Ombudsman Nil

Requests made under Section 74 during the year to  
Ombudsman to investigate disclosed matters Nil

Disclosures the public body has declined to investigate Nil

Disclosures that were substantiated on investigation Nil

Recommendations by the Ombudsman under this  
Act that relate to Murrindindi Shire Council Nil

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 increased integrity reforms 
in Victoria, including the establishment of the Independent 
Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC), a body 
established to promote integrity and accountability across the 
Victorian public sector, including local government.

Whistleblowers expose serious problems within the 
management and operations of a government organisation.
The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 enables people to make 
disclosures about improper conduct within the public sector 
without fear of reprisal. The Act aims to ensure openness and 
accountability by encouraging people to make disclosures and 
protecting them when they do.

Murrindindi Shire Council is committed to the aims and 
objectives of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012 and has in place 
procedures to facilitate the making of disclosures. Council 
does not tolerate improper conduct by its employees, officers 
or members, nor the taking of reprisals against those who 
come forward to disclose such conduct.

Contact details for council’s Protected Disclosure Coordinator/
Officer are:

•	 Protected Disclosure Coordinator: Michael Chesworth, 
General	Manager	Corporate	and	Community	Services,	
Murrindindi Shire Council, PO Box 138, Alexandra 3714. Ph: 
5772 0335

•	 Protected Disclosure Officer: Liz	Peddie,	Coordinator	
Human Resources, Murrindindi Shire Council, PO Box 138, 
Alexandra 3714. Ph: 5772 0396

Alternative Contacts

•	 Independent	Broad-Based	Anti-Corruption	Commission	
(IBAC),	\Address:	IBAC,	GP	Box	24234,	Melbourne	Victoria	
3000, Internet: www.ibac.vic.gov.au ; Phone: 1300 735 135

Note: All disclosures about Councillors should be directed to 
IBAC. 

Protected DisclosuresFreedom of Information 

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 gives the community 
a legally enforceable right to information held by Council. 
Applications under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 must 
be made in writing and a fee of $27.20 (as of 1 July 2015) 
must be paid. Information regarding Council’s FOI application 
process can be found on Council’s website or available 
from any of the Council Offices. Community members are 
encouraged to contact Council’s FOI Officer prior to lodging 
an application to receive advice regarding what is and isn’t 
accessible. 

Year  Number of
 applications
2010-2011 12

2011-2012 16

2012-2013 9

2013-2014 9

2014-2015 28

Freedom of  2013-
Information 2014

Access granted in full Nil

Access granted in part 10

Access denied in full Nil

Withdrawn Nil

Not proceeded with Nil

Act does not apply Nil

Not processed 6

No documents 1

Outside the Act Nil

Not yet finalised 11

Granted	in	part	-	 
outstanding from  
previous year Nil
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Public documents

Section 11 of the Local Government (General) Regulations 
2004 requires Council to have certain documents available 
for public inspection.  Documents and registers available for 
inspection in accordance with these Regulations and the Local 
Government Act 1989 are: 

•	 The	Certified	Voters’	Roll	for	a	Council	election	–	for	the	
period beginning on the certification date and ending 30 
days after election day.

•	 Copies	of	campaign	donation	returns	lodged	by	candidates	
in the last Council election.

•	 The	Council’s	adopted	Code of Conduct 2013.
•	 Register	of	interests.
•	 All	Local	Laws	adopted	by	the	Council.
•	 Copies	of	the	Council Plan, Strategic Resource Plan, Budget 

and Annual Report.
•	 Details	regarding	differential	rates	declared	by	Council.
•	 Special	Rate.
•	 Quality	and	Cost	Standards.
•	 Details	of	current	allowances	fixed	for	the	Mayor	and	

Councillors under Section 74 or 74A of The Act.
•	 Details	of	senior	officers’	total	salary	packages:

•	 The	total	annual	remuneration	for	all	senior	officers	in	
respect of the current financial year and the previous 
financial year, set out in a list that states:
•	 ranges	of	remuneration	of	senior	officers,	where	the	

difference between the lower amount and the higher 
amount in each range must not exceed $10,000; and

•	 the	number	of	senior	officers	whose	total	annual	
remuneration falls within the ranges referred to in 
subparagraph (i).

•	 Details	of	overseas	or	interstate	travel	(with	the	exception	
of interstate travel by land for less than 3 days) undertaken 
in an official capacity by Councillors or any member of 
Council staff in the previous 12 months, including the 
names of the Councillors or members of Council staff 
and the date, destination, purpose and total cost of the 
overseas or interstate travel.

•	 Names	of	Councillors	and	Council	Officers	who	submitted	
returns of interest during the financial year.

•	 Agendas	for	Council	meetings	–	except	parts	of	meetings	
closed to the public under section 89 of the Act.

•	 Minutes	of	Council	meetings	–	except	parts	of	the	meetings	
closed to the public under section 89 of the Act.

•	 A	list	of	all	special	committees	established	by	the	Council	
which were abolished or ceased to function during the 
financial year.

•	 Minutes	of	meetings	of	special	committees	established	

under Section 86 of the Act and held in the previous 12 
months except if the minutes relate to parts of meetings 
which have been closed to members of the public under 
Section 89 of the Act.

•	 A	register	of	delegations	kept	under	Sections	87,	88	and	
98 of the Act, including the date on which the last review 
under Section 98(6) of the Act took place.

•	 Submissions	received	in	accordance	with	Section	223	of	the	
Act during the previous 12 months.

•	 Agreements	to	establish	regional	libraries	under	Section	
196 of the Act.

•	 Details	of	all	property,	finance	and	operating	leases	
involving land, buildings, plant, computer equipment or 
vehicles entered into by the Council as lessor or lessee, 
including the name of the other party to the lease and the 
terms and the value of the lease.

•	 A	register	of	authorised	officers	appointed	under	Section	
224 of the Act.

•	 A	list	of	donations	and	grants	made	by	Council	during	the	
financial year.

•	 A	list	of	organisations	of	which	Council	was	a	member	
during the financial year.

•	 A	list	of	contracts	valued	at	$100,000	(or	such	higher	
amount as is fixed from time to time under Section 186(1) 
of the Act) or more –

 (i) which the Council entered into during the financial year 
without first engaging in a competitive process; and

 (ii) which are not contracts referred to in section 186(5) of 
the Act.

•	 Council’s	current	Procurement Policy  
•	 Written	record	of	“Assembly	of	Councillors’	for	a	period	of	

12 months after the date of the assembly.

Cemetery management

Murrindindi Shire Council as Trustee for the Yea Cemetery Trust 
administers the pioneer and new cemeteries in Yea. 

Activities completed with regard to the Yea cemeteries in 
2014–2015 included: 
•	 Review	of	the	cemetery	fee	structure
•	 Completed	Grave	Safe	Training	

Looking forward

•	 Finalisation	of	a	Master	Plan	for	the	Cemetery	Site	
•	 Continue	the	development	of	the	cemetery	grounds
•	 Seek	funding	for	development	of	a	Conservation 

Management Plan for the old cemetery.
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Governance and Management Items Assessment

Governance & Management Checklist
The following are the results of Council’s assessments against the prescribed governance and management checklist.

1. Community Engagement Policy (policy outlining Council’s 
commitment to engaging with the community on matters 
of public interest) 

2. Community Engagement Guidelines (guidelines to assist 
staff to determine when and how to engage with the 
community) 

3. Strategic Resource Plan (plan under section 126 of the Act 
outlining the financial and non-financial resources required 
for at least the next 4 financial years) 

4. Annual Budget (plan under section 130 of the Act setting 
out the services to be provided and initiatives to be 
undertaken over the next 12 months and the funding and 
other resources required) 

5. Asset Management Plans (plans that set out the asset 
maintenance and renewal needs for key infrastructure asset 
classes for at least the next 10 years) 

6. Rating Strategy (strategy setting out the rating structure of 
Council to levy rates and charges)

7. Risk Policy (policy outlining Council’s commitment and 
approach to minimising the risks to Council’s operations)

8. Fraud Policy (policy outlining Council’s commitment and 
approach to minimising the risk of fraud) 

9. Municipal Emergency Management Plan (plan under 
section 20 of the Emergency Management Act 1986 for 
emergency prevention, response and recovery) 

10. Procurement Policy (policy under section 186A of the Local 
Government Act 1989 outlining the matters, practices and 
procedures that will apply to all purchases of goods, services 
and works) 

11. Business Continuity Plan (plan setting out the actions that 
will be taken to ensure that key services continue to operate 
in the event of a disaster) 

12. Disaster Recovery Plan (plan setting out the actions 
that will be undertaken to recover and restore business 
capability in the event of a disaster)

13. Risk Management Framework (framework outlining 
Council’s approach to managing risks to the Council’s 
operations)

Current policy adopted: 24/09/2012

Current guidelines adopted: 24/09/2012

Adopted in accordance with s126 of the Act: 27/05/2015

Adopted in accordance with s130 of the Act: 27/05/2015

Council maintains a large number of different asset 
management plans broken down into the following 
categories - Roads, Paths, Kerb & Channel, Bridges, Urban 
Drainage, Community Buildings, Plant & Equipment, 
Corporate Buildings

Current strategy adopted: 25/03/2015

Current policy adopted: 27/06/2012

Current policy adopted: 24/09/2014

Adopted in accordance with s20 of the Act: 17/12/2014

Current policy adopted in accordance with s186A of the 
Act: 17/12/2014

Current plan adopted: 30/04/2015

Current plan adopted: 30/06/2015

Current framework adopted: 30/06/2014
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Governance and Management Items Assessment

14. Audit Committee (advisory committee of Council under 
section 139 of the Act whose role is to oversee the integrity 
of a Council’s financial reporting, processes to manage 
risks to the Council’s operations and for compliance with 
applicable legal, ethical, and regulatory requirements) 

15. Internal Audit (independent accounting professionals 
engaged by the Council to provide analyses and 
recommendations aimed at improving Council’s 
governance, risk and management controls) 

16. Performance Reporting Framework (a set of indicators 
measuring financial and non-financial performance, 
including the performance indicators referred to in section 
131 of the Act) 

17. Council Plan Reporting (report reviewing the performance 
of the Council against the Council Plan, including the results 
in relation to the strategic indicators, for the first six months 
of the financial year) 

18. Financial Reporting (quarterly statements to Council under 
section 138 of the Act comparing budgeted revenue and 
expenditure with actual revenue and expenditure)

19. Risk Reporting (six-monthly reports of strategic risks to 
Council’s operations, their likelihood and consequences of 
occurring and risk minimisation strategies) 

20. Performance Reporting (six-monthly reports of indicators 
measuring the results against financial and non-financial 
performance, including performance indicators referred to 
in section 131 of the Act)

21. Annual Report (annual report under sections 131, 132 and 
133 of the Act to the community containing a report of 
operations and audited financial performance statements)

22. Councillor Code of Conduct (Code under section 76C of 
the Act setting out the conduct principles and the dispute 
resolution processes to be followed by Councillors) 

23. Delegations (a document setting out the powers, duties 
and functions of Council and the Chief Executive Officer that 
have been delegated to members of staff) 

24. Meeting Procedures (a local law governing the conduct of 
meetings of Council and special committees) 

Committee enacted in accordance with s139 of the Act 
that meet quarterly to review Council’s financial, risk and 
corporate affairs

Current independent auditor engaged as of 1 January 
2015, replacing previous contractor whose four year term 
ended at 31 December 2014

Current framework enacted as of 01/07/2014 

Council reports its performance against the Council Plan 
on a quarterly basis at the November, February, April and 
August meetings

Council reports its financial performance against the 
budget on a quarterly basis at the November, February, 
April and September meetings

Reported to Council in December 2014

Council reports its performance against key indicators 
of both financial and non-financial performance on a 
quarterly basis at the November, February, April and 
August meetings

Annual Report adopted in accordance with the Act: 
25/09/2014

Current Code adopted: 25/09/2013

Reviewed in accordance with s98(6) of the Act: 11/06/2015

Current	Local	Law	adopted:	25/06/2014

I certify that this information present fairly the status of Council’s governance and management arrangements.

Margaret Abbey Margaret Rae
Chief Executive Officer Mayor
Dated: 23 September 2015 Dated: 23 September 2015
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Donations and Grants provided 
by Council 2014-2015

Organisation memberships  
for 2014-2015

RECEIVED BY AMOUNT

Alexandra	Community	Leisure	Centre	 $14,000.00

Alexandra	Events	Cooperation	Ltd	 $3,000.00

Alexandra	Golf	Club	 $5,000.00

Alexandra Visitor Information Centre $3,575.00

Alexandra Pastoral & Agricultural Association  $400.00

Alexandra Pre School $1,246.00

Alexandra Race Club $500.00

State Emergency Services Alexandra $19,280.00

State Emergency Services Kinglake $19,280.00

State Emergency Services Marysville $19,280.00

Buxton Primary School $1,828.00

Buxton Recreation Reserve $3,740.00

Canoeing Victoria $2,000.00

Eildon	Community	Leisure	Centre	 $1,000.00

Eildon Information Centre $1,090.50

Eildon Pre School $4,586.00

Eildon Resource Centre $250.00

Glenburn	Hall	&	Progress	Association	 $325.00

Grow	Food	Network	 $2,500.00

Kinglake Ranges Neighbourhood House $450.00

Kinglake Senior Citizens $2,656.00

Lions	Club	of	Eildon	 $3,311.00

Lions	Club	of	Marysville	 $750.00

Marysville Information Centre $3,500.00

Murrindindi Woodbourne Community Hub $250.00

Murrindindi Men’s Shed Cluster $5,000.00

Rotary Club Alexandra $2,500.00

Rotary Club of Kinglake $2,000.00

Rotary Club Yea $2,450.00

Strath Creek Reserve and Hall $375.00

Triangle	Arts	Group	 $2,000.00

Yea Art Carnivale $3,800.00

Yea Centenary Show $1,250.00

Yea Information Centre $5,320.00

 

TOTAL $138,492.50

ORGANISATION MEMBERSHIP FEE

Local	Government	Professionals	 $1,109.09

North	East	Regional	Development	Scheme	-	E	Learning		 $2,500.00

Australian	Local	Government	Job	Directory	 $695.00

Municipal Association Of Victoria $24,501.82

Victorian Employers Chamber of Commerce $6,000.00

Timber Towns Victoria $3,000.00

Public	Library	Victoria	Network	Inc	 $517.00

Family Day Care Victoria $275.00

Civil Contractors Federation $604.55

Children’s Book Council  $80.00

Victorian	Local	Governance	Association	 $4,300.00

Goulburn	Valley	Regional	Waste	Management	Group	 $4,195.00

SAI	Global	 $423.64

Meals Victoria $80.00

Victorian	Maternal	&	Child	Health	Coordinators	Group	 $50.00

National In-Home Childcare Association $200.00

National Timber Councils Association $2,500.00

Play Australia  $312.00

TOTAL $51,343.10 

Margaret Abbey Margaret Rae
Chief Executive Officer Mayor
Dated: 23 September 2015 Dated: 23 September 2015
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Description of works Works in  Total value Total value
 progress of works  of works 
   completed
 01 July 2014 2014-2015 30 June 2015
 $ $ $

Alexandra	Landfill	-	Fencing	 																																						-		 12,690	 12,690
Alexandra	Landfill	-	Road	Works	 																																						-		 5,311	 5,311
Alexandra Senior Citizens                                       -  51,965 51,965
Alexandra Shire Office                                       -  87,473 87,473
Webster Street Office                                       -  2,850 2,850
Kinglake Office                                        -  2,885 2,885
Marysville Caravan Park                                       -  9,493 9,493
Playgrounds                                        -  5,500 5,500
Public Conveniences                                       -  7,411 7,411
Resource Recovery Centres                                       -  33,410 33,410
Rotary Park Alexandra - BBQ                                       -  11,022 11,022
RV Dump Sites                                   739  30,256 30,995
UGFM	Building	 																																						-		 7,380	 7,380
Various Buildings Access Compliance                                   803  3,746 4,549
Y Water  Centre                           1,648,738  268,323 1,917,061
Yea Caravan Park                                       -  16,294 16,294
Yea Pre School                                        -  2,200 2,200
Yea Shire Hall                                       -  2,431 2,431

Total Buildings & Structures 1,650,280 560,640 2,210,920

Capital works summary 2014-2015

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES

CAPITAL WORKS UNDERTAKEN AND COMPLETED DURING 2014/2015

PLANT AND MACHINERY

Major Plant   475,999 475,999
Motor Vehicles & Minor Plant   373,564 373,564

Total Plant & Equipment                                       -  849,563 849,563

Gravel	Roads	-	Resheeting	 																																						-		 776,563	 776,563
Sealed Road - Renewal & Major                                       -  208,396 208,396
Sealed Roads - Reseals                                       -  44,789 44,789
Green	Street	 206,058	 33,188	 239,246
Kerb Renewal                                       -  31,907 31,907
Road Safety 156,995 25,795 182,790

Total Road and Paths 363,053 1,120,638 1,483,690

ROADS
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Description of works Works in  Total value Total value
 progress of works  of works 
   completed
 01 July 2014 2014-2015 30 June 2015
 $ $ $

Taggerty Walking Trail                                       -  124,352 124,352
Kangaroo Creek                                        -  33,033 33,033
Swamp Creek                                       -  39,172 39,172

Total Bridges                                        -  196,557 196,557

Footpath Renewal  46,117 46,117
Footpaths	-	Missing	Links	 	 128,387	 128,387
Paths - Upgrade  28,991 28,991

Total Footpaths and Cycleways                                       -  203,496 203,496
   
 
Drainage	Project	LGIP		 	 145,792	 145,792
Drainage - Network Expansion  200,995 200,995
Drainage Upgrade- trouble spots  1,629 1,629
Drainage (New) Budget Purposes  8,216 8,216
Stormwater Quality Improvements  0 0
Marysville Drainage   0

Total Drainage                                       -  356,633 356,633
   
 
Princess Alexandra Statue - Refurbishment  11,646 11,646

Total Heritage Assets                                       -  11,646 11,646
   
 
Computer Equipment   34,147 34,147
Other   39,175 39,175

Total Furniture & Equipment                                       -  73,322 73,322
   
 
Bookstock  61,577 61,577
Audio Visual   22,444 22,444
Magazines   502 502

Total Library Materials                                       -  84,523 84,523
   
 
   
 

BRIDGES

CAPITAL WORKS UNDERTAKEN AND COMPLETED DURING 2014/2015

FOOTPATHS AND CYCLEWAYS

DRAINAGE

HERITAGE ASSETS

FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

LIBRARY MATERIALS
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Description of works Works in  Total value Total value
 progress of works  of works 
   completed
 01 July 2014 2014-2015 30 June 2015
 $ $ $

Alexandra Swimming Pool  6,171 6,171
Eildon Swimming Pool  9,991 9,991
Eildon Township Revitialisation  65,731 65,731
Essential Safety Services System  14,215 14,215
Ghin	Ghin	Bridge	 	 1,512,556	 1,512,556
Ghin	Ghin	Road	-	Safety	Works	Black	Spot	 	 560	 560
Homewood Bridge Renewal  1,371 1,371
Kinglake Ranges Art History Walk  55,083 55,083
Landfill	Cell	Constructions	 	 13,374	 13,374
Marysville Swimming Pool  86,015 86,015
Moores Bridge  Renewal   4,800 4,800
Taggerty Walking Trail & Township Upgrade   279,286 279,286
Terrip Terrip Recreation Reserve  110,488 110,488
Yarck Rejuvenating Village Hub  1,779 1,779
Yea Civic Centre Precinct Project  36,295 36,295
Yea Netball Court   385 385
Yea Pioneer Reserve  2,036 2,036
Yea Swimming Pool  574,546 574,546

Total Works In Progress                                       -  2,774,682 2,774,682
    
Total value of Capital works 2014-2015 2,013,333 6,231,699 8,245,031

WORK IN PROGRESS

CAPITAL WORKS UNDERTAKEN AND COMPLETED DURING 2014/2015
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Local Government Indicators 2013-2014

 Category Description 2014-15 2013-14

Overall performance Community satisfaction rating for overall performance  
  generally of the Council 52 46

Advocacy Community Satisfaction rating for Council’s lobbying on behalf of  
  the community 49 47

Community Consultation Community satisfaction rating for Council’s community  
  consultation and engagement 50 48

All rates Average rates and charges per assessment $1,775.17  $1,650.84

Residential rates Average residential rates and charges per assessment $1,593.56  $1,505.09

Operating costs Average operating expenditure per assessment $3,192.12  $3,142.09

Capital expenditure Average capital expenditure per assessment $655.83  $895.89

Infrastructure Renewal undertaken as a percentage of budget   65.46%  100.5%

  Total capital works completed 65.05%  82.8%

Debts Average liabilities per assessment $294.33  $389.91

Operating result Operating result per assessment $521.77  $137.92

Council continues to ensure compliance with the National Competition Policy in order to ensure the transparency of its decision 
making and as a good business practice.

National Competition Policy Compliance

The Victorian Government requires all Victorian councils to measure and annually report against seven Victorian Local 
Government Indicators. 
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Introduction to the Financials
Understanding the financial statements

The financial report of the Murrindindi Shire Council is a 
general purpose financial report that consists of an Income 
Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Cash Flow Statement together with notes accompanying these 
statements. 

This general purpose financial report has been prepared 
to comply with the provisions of the Local Government Act, 
1989, Local Government (Finance and Reporting) Regulations 
2014, applicable Australian Accounting Standards and other 
mandatory professional reporting requirements. 

Particular terms required by the Standards may not be 
familiar to some readers. Further, Council is a ‘not for profit’ 
organisation and some of the generally recognised terms 
used in private sector company reports are not appropriate for 
Council’s reports.

Council is committed to accountability and transparency. 
It is in this context that the plain English guide has been 
developed to assist readers to understand and analyse the 
financial report. 

What is contained in the Annual Financial 
Report?

Council’s financial report has two sets of Statements:

1. Financial Statements

2. Performance Statement

Each of these statements is prepared by Council’s employees, 
examined by the Council Audit Advisory Committee and by 
Council,	and	then	are	audited	by	the	Victorian	Auditor-General.

Comprehensive Income Statement

The Income Statement sets out the movement in relation to 
revenue, expenses and other adjustments from all activities 
and compares these figures to the previous financial year. 
It provides a view of Council’s operating performance. 
The Income Statement requires revenues to be separately 
disclosed where the item is of such a size, nature and 
incidence, that its disclosure is relevant in explaining the 
performance of the Council.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows a snap shot of Council’s financial 
position as at 30 June 2015. It shows the total of what is 
owned (assets) less what is owed (liabilities). The assets and 
liabilities are separated into current and non-current. Current 
means those assets or liabilities that fall due in the next 12 
months. The ‘bottom line’ of this statement is net assets, which 
is the net worth of the Council. The change in net assets 
between the two years shows how the financial position has 
changed over the period.  Net assets are made up of the total 
current and noncurrent assets less the current and noncurrent 
liabilities.

Statement of Changes in Equity

During the course of the year the value of Total Equity as set 
out in the Balance Sheet changes. This Statement shows the 
values of such changes and how these changes arose.

The main reasons for a change in equity stem from:

•	 the	‘surplus	or	deficit’	from	operations,	described	in	the	
Comprehensive Income Statement as the Comprehensive 
Result for the year

•	 the	use	of	monies	from	Council’s	reserves

•	 a	revaluation	of	the	assets	which	takes	place	on	a	regular	
basis to ensure the most up-to-date value is included in 
Council’s books. It also occurs when existing assets are 
taken up in the books for the first time.
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Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement summarises Council’s cash 
payments and cash receipts for the year. This Statement is 
presented according to a very specific Accounting Standard 
and needs some care in analysis. The values may differ from 
those shown in the Comprehensive Income Statement 
because the Comprehensive Income Statement is prepared 
on an accrual accounting basis.

Cash in this Statement refers to bank deposits and other 
forms of highly liquid investments that can be readily 
converted to cash. Council’s cash arises from, and is used in, 
three main areas.

1. Cash flows from operating activities:

•	 Receipts	–	all	cash	received	into	Council’s	bank	account	
from ratepayers and others who owe money to Council. 
Receipts also include the interest earnings from Council’s 
cash investments. It does not include the costs associated 
with the sale of assets.

•	 Payments	–	all	cash	paid	by	Council	from	its	bank	account	
to employees, creditors and other persons. It does not 
include the costs associated with the creation of assets.

2. Cash flows from investing activities:

•	 This	section	shows	the	cash	invested	in	the	creation	or	
purchase of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 
assets and the cash received from the sale of these assets.

3. Cash flows from financing activities:

•	 This	is	where	the	receipt	and	repayment	of	borrowed	
funds are recorded.

The bottom line of the Cash Flow Statement is the cash 
and cash equivalents at end of financial year. This shows 
the capacity of Council to meet its cash debts and other 
liabilities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes are a very important and informative section 
of the report. The Australian Accounting Standards are not 
prescriptive on some matters. Therefore, to enable the reader 
to understand the basis upon which the values shown in the 
Statements are established, it is necessary to provide details 
of Council’s significant accounting policies.

Apart from the accounting policies, the Notes also give 
details behind many of the summary figures contained in the 
Statements. The Note numbers are shown beside the relevant 
items in the Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance 
Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement.

The Notes also include information that Council wishes 
to disclose but which cannot be incorporated into the 
Statements.

Other notes include:

•	 the	cost	of	the	various	functions/activities	of	Council

•	 the	breakdown	of	expenses,	revenues,	reserves	and	other	
assets

•	 contingent	liabilities

•		 transactions	with	persons	related	to	Council

•		 financial	performance	indicators	(ratios)

The Notes should be read in conjunction with the other 
parts of the Financial Statements to get a clear picture of the 
accounts.

Performance Statement

The Performance Statement shows the results that were 
achieved for the year for a number of performance indicators.

The document is then certified by the Principal Accounting 
Officer, the person responsible for the financial management 
of Council that, in her/his opinion, the Financial Statements 
have met all the statutory and professional reporting 
requirements.

The performance statement is also certified by the Chief 
Executive Officer and two Councillors on behalf of Council 
that, in their opinion, the Financial Statements are fair and 
not misleading or inaccurate.

Auditor-General’s Report

The Independent Audit Report provides the reader with 
an external and independent opinion on the Financial 
Statements. It confirms that the Financial Report has been 
prepared in accordance with relevant legislation and 
professional standards and that it represents a fair picture of 
the financial affairs of the Council.
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